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CHARTERETHD ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sterling and Wilson
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2022,
the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive inceme), the standalone
statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash tlows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in which are included the Returns for the year ended on that date audited by the
branch auditors of the Company’s branches tocated at Rwanda, Tanzania and Egypt (hereinafter
referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial staterments™).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, except
for the effects of the matters deseribed in the ‘Basis tor Quatified Opinion” paragraph of our report, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under scetion 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss {including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As on March 31, 2022, the Company’s total exposure towards Sterling and Wilson International IZE
(SW FZE), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company aggregates Rs. L1125 croves, which
comprises of investment in cquity shates of the aforesaid subsidiary amounting to Rs. 1,12 crores, loans
given including interest outstanding amounting to Rs, 1,110.19 crores and other recoverable balances
amounting to Rs. 1.20 crores. The audited financial statements of the wholly- owned subsidiary have
not been received from the subsidiary’s managernent as at the date of this report, as a result of which we
are unable to comment whether an impairment provision is required towards these aforesaid cxposures.
Moreover, SW FZE has repaid an amount of Rs. 216 crores after the balance shect date, as at the date of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issucd by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit o [ the
standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical respousibilitics in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Bthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our gualificd opinien on the standalene ind AS finsncial
statements, :

Fiphasis of Matter

a) We draw attention Lo note 50 of the stndaione Ind AS financial staterments regarding the filing of

(4

apphication of the Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) before the National Company Law Tribunal

INCLTY, Mumbai Beneh, on August 30, 2022, for the reduction of share capital and reorganization
o1 reserves of e Company and the merger of Steriing and Wilson Middle East Blectromechanical
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LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary company (“Transferor Company/SW MELLC™), a forcign Limited
Liability Company incorperated in the Emivate of Dubai into the Company. As on Marck 31, 2022,
the Company's total exposure towards SW MELLC, aggregates Rs. 1,701.49 crores, which
comprises of investment in equity shares of the aforesaid subsidiary amounting to Rs. (162 crores,
loans given including interest culstanding amoeunting 1o Rs. 1,545.10 crores and other recoverable
balances amounting to Rs. 155.77 crores. Based on discussions with the Company’s Management
and the cxpected NCLT approval for the Scheme of Arrangement and merger, no
adjustments/impairment is made in the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the aforesaid total

exposure towards SW MELLC.

b} We draw attention to note 60 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements regarding recoverability
of trade receivables, unbilled reccivables and advance for projects aggrepating to Rs. 94.04 crores as
at March 31, 2022 which represents contractual dues from Sky Power Group (Developers) in respect
of twg states namely Telangana and MadHya Pradesh which were under disputes with the
Developers (seven Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) owned by Sky Power Group). Out of the seven
projects, pursuan( (0 negoliations/discussion, disputes for four projects have been resolved and
settled prior to March 2022, For the two projects the Dethi High Court had directed Sky Power
Group {Developers) to furnish Bank Guarantees equivalont o 50% of the total reccivables towards
the aforesaid two projects. The developers have sought extensions which Delhi High Court has
granted. With regard to one project, the dispute is between Sky Power Group and Madhya Pradesh
Power Management Company Limited which is sub judice and currently is being heard at Supreme
Court and the verdict is awaited. Subsequent to Supreme Court decision, the Company expects
settlement/recovery of its dues,

Based on discussions with the Developers, Company’s Legal Counscl, favourable order passed by
Delhi High Court and the expected Supreme Court verdict, the Management believes that
cuistanding amount is good and recaverable and that no adjustments/impairments arc required o be
made in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company towards the total outstanding
receivables as on the balance sheet date.

Our Opinion and Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements are not modified in respect of
the above matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises of the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the standalone Ind
AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information as specified above is
expected to be made available fo us afler the date of this suditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements dees not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

in connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements our responsibility is {0 read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially meonsistent
with the standalone Ind AS financial siatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears fo be materially misstated.

When we read the other informaton as specified above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act
with respeet fo the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial stalements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash {lows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified undey section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind A$ financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability 10 continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gong
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s {inancial reporiing process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
sratements as a whotle are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will abways detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econvmic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether duc to
fraud or errer, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and oblain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ceror, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

mternal control,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevamt o the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place with reference 1w its standalone Ind A5 financial statements and the

stiveness of such controls.

operating it

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY LLP

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gomng concern hasis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerlainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a Qoing concern.
If we conctude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report W the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to
modify our opinion.

QOur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer’s report.
However, future cvents or conditions may cause the Company to cease (0 continue as a going
concern.

+  Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and cvents in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitede of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregaie, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasopably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial information of 3 branches included in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company whose standalone financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 83.02
crores as at 31 March 2022, the total revenue of Rs. 78.53 crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. These branches have been audited by the
branch auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in sc far as 1t relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of branches, is based solely on the report of such branch
auditors.

These branches are located outside India whose financial and other information have been prepared in
accordance accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been
audited by branch auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Company has converted the financial information of such branches located outside India
from accounting principles gencrally accepted in their respective countries o accounting principles
generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company. Our
opinion in s far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such branches located outside India is solely
based on the report of branch auditors and the conversion adjusiments prepared by the Company and
audited by us.

Cur Opinion and Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements are 1ot wodified in respect of

the above matters.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

b

¢)

dy

R

<

k)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of Indig in terms of sub-scction (113 of section 143 of the Act, we give n the
Amnexure A, a statement on the maters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of 1the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

Except for the effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualificd Opinion’ paragraph
above, we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowicedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Ixcept for the cffects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualilied Opinion’ paragraph
above, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and proper retums adequate for the purposes of our
audit have heen reccived from the Branches not visiied by us,

The awdit report on the accounts of one of the branch offices of the Company audited under Section
143(8) of the Act have not been addressed to us by the branch auditers of the above referred
branch, as required pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 143(8) read with sub-rule {2) of Rule 12
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, The said report on accounts have been
addressed to the management of the branch and the same have been provided to us by the
Company, which we have considered in the preparing this report.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income}, the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement
of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph
above, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the divectors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director 1n terms of Scction 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the mternal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectivencss of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Anncxure B”

With respect to the other maters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
requircments of gection 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the provisions of section 197 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matiers (o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on is financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 4001 1o the standalone Ind AS financial

statements;
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i

Hi,

v,

V.

The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable faw o accounting
standards, for material foresceable losses on long term contracts - Refer Noie 29 to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements. The Company did not have any material foresecable
losses on derivative conftracts,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(2) The Management has represented thal, to the best of its knowledge and belief, except as

(b)

()

stated in note 58 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to ot in any other person(s)/ entity(ies),
including forcign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded m
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any person{s) / entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under iv {a) and iv (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LL.P
Chartered Accountants

/

o

e
R

J\t;n\hud K. Udwadia

Partner

Mem JLIShlp No: ]7461’%

Fi}\‘m Reg. No:- j04607W / W100166

=
t DINNo. 2212465888 r’l‘zv'aeoq,
Mumbai, September 29, 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our Report (o the
members of the Company on the standaione Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

Statement on Matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020:

1) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars inchuding quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

The Company is maimtaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b} According (o the information and explanations given o us, the Property, Plant and Equipment
were physically verified by the management which in our opinion is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancics were noticed on
physteal verification of the fixed assets during the vear.

(¢)  With respect to immovable propertics of land and building that are frechold, according to the
records examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to
us, we report that, the title deeds of such immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance shect date.

(dy According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment and its intangible assets. Aceordingly, the provision of paragraph
3(1)(d) of the Order are not applicable o the Company.,

{e) According to the information and explanations given o us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph
3(1) {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

i) (a) The Management has not conducted physical verification of the inventory during the year.
Accordingly, material discrepancies, if any, could not be ascertained and therefore, we are
unable to comment on whether materjal discrepancies, if any, have been properly dealt with in
the books of account.

{b)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital Hmits in
excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are
secured on the basis of security of current assets. According to the explanations given 1o us
and based on our verification the retums filed by the Compuany are generally in agreement
with the books of accounts.

1) (1) According (o the information explination provided to us, the Company has provided loans or
given guarantee, or provided security 1o subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.
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The details of such loans, guarantces or securify are as under:

(Rs 1n crores}

Guarantees | Loans Investments
Aggregate  amount
granted/provided
during the year
< Subsidiaries 3.65 692.41 0.62
- Joint venture - - 4.277
- Others - - -
Balance Qutstanding
as at balance sheet
date in  respect of
above cases
- Subsidiaries 19679 Z2.881.83 0.62
Joint ventures - 4.27
- Others 9.55 -
) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made, loans granted and advances

in the nature of loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

{c} In casc of the loans granted to subsidiaries and related partics, there arc no stipulations as
regards schedule of repayment of principal and interest, since the loans granted are on call,
Loans granted to other parties have a stipulated date for repayment of principal and interest,
where the repayment of principal is regular. However, the receipt of interest on those Joans are
not regular as stipulated.

() There are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of the loan granfed to
Company/ Firmy/ LLP/ Other Parties except for principal amounting to Rs. 3 crores and
interest amounting to Rs 3.24 crores both of which were overdue for a period of more than
ninety days as on the balance sheet date. These overdue amounis have been received by the
Company subsequent o Balance sheet date,

{c) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loans granted has not fallen due
during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(H According to the mformation cxplanation provided to us, the Company has granted
loans/advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment, The details of the same are as follows:

(Rs in croves)
Related Parties

Aggregate amount of leans/ advances in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand 2,891.38
Percentage of loans to the total loans 99.78
V) In our opinien and according o the information and explanations given w us and bascd on the

audit procedures conducted by us, e Company has compticd with the provisions of section
[835 and 186 of the Act with respect w the granting of foans, investments made and
guarantces provided by the Company. The Company has not given any security during the
year to the parties covered under scetion 136 of the Act.
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V) In our opinion. and according o the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits as per the directives issucd by the Reserve Bank of India under
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other refevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, para 3(v) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

Vi) The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company
as the Central Governiment of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any
of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order
arc not applicable to the Company.

The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, ecmployecs state insurance, income tax, professional tax, goods
and service fax, duly of customs and other material statutory dues have not been deposited
regularly during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritics, there have been
delays in certain cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
duty of excise and cess.

vii) (a)

No undisputed amounts payable i respect of provident fund, employees state imsurance,
profession fax, income tax, geods and service tax, duty of customs and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date the became payables

(b  According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the
Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and
any other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as Tollows:

Amount
Pemand paid ) X . N
Name of Statute | Natwre of dues (Rs. under Year to wlx;ch Forum .where .
Crores) protest amount relates appeal is pending
{Rs.
Crores)
Value Added Non-Submission Assistant
Tax and Central of Fo}lm h 0.10 - 2015-16 Commissioner of
Sales Tax ) ) Cemmercial Taxes
Value Added 2012413 To Additional Director
Tax and Central Tax 5.01 - ;{)lz-i 6 General DGGSTI,
Sales Tax T Zonal Unit, Mumbai
,}ifiu;}g(g;tim] Nf)lySublmssion 1593 0.0 201516 to 2016- /‘:ppcl]z.ite. Deputy
Sales Tax of Forms 17 Commissioner
Value Added Assistant
Tax and Central Tax 2.94 0.74 3205"06 o 2007 Commissioner of
sales Tax N Saltes Tax
Value Added . e
Tax and Central Tax .51 - 2017-18 {,0}3113101’61:31 fax
Sales Tax Olficer
i > dn
'?‘:piqu;;ﬁ{(iﬁt?n-m NEJ?—Suim]éssion 0.99 i “(31? 14,2014 (’3()\1}1;110:‘&21! Tax
Sales Tax of Forms 15,2016-17 Oflicer
Value Added Non-submission 201112, 2012- Commissioner of
Tax and Centrai j(]_: o 1.1 0.t5 13, 2013-14 w0 (‘.,_ o : ,]1_' ,
Sales Tax of Forms., 301516 “onunercial Tax
,;f alue Added 1.00 010 | 2011-12.2015-16 | Commissioner af
ax and Central Commercial Tax
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Name of Statufe

Nature of dues

Demand
{Rs,
Crores)

Amount
paid
under
protest
{Rs.
Crores)

Year fo which
amount relates

Forum where
appeal is pending

“Sales Tax

- Sales Tax

Certificates

L 142017-18

Value Added Non-Submission Deputy
Tax and Central | o0 oS 0.07 0.01 |2013-14 Commissioner of
e of Forms - "
Sales Tax Coammercial Tax
2005-06, 2006-
07, 2007-08,
Value Added Non Submission 2008-09, 2009- Deputy
Tax and Ceniral ;F],)‘_ln o 15SI0) 12.72 0.75 10, 2010- Commissioner of
Sales Tax oL orms 11,2013- Sales Tax
14,2016-
17,2017-18
Value Added . - .
Fax and Ceniral Non-submission 4.0 0.66 2012132613 Joint Commissioner
Sales ’I"—m" of Forms ’ ’ 14,2015-16 of Commercial Tax
Disallowance of
Value Added Labour and 2012-13 to 2013- Joint Commissioner
Tax and Central | Service, Non- 13.89 1.05 14,2015-16, o S,ﬂf’,}?f“‘““’““
Sales Tax Submission of 2016-17,2017.18 | U OO 1ax
Forms
Vaiue Added Non verification 2011-12, 2013- Excise & Taxation
Tax and Central of certificates 1.66 14, 2015-16 1o Officer Cum
Sales Tax and Forms 2016-17 Assessing Authority
Y'd]l.lc Added Non-Submission 2013-14.2014-15 I_J‘(-:pmyl .
F'ax and Central e 1.59 0.34 Commissioner of
S of Forms and 2015-16 A
Sales Tax Comimercial Tax
szluc Adf]Cd Non-Submission 2015-16, 2016- Assistant
I'ax and Central N 2.04 - . .
Sales Tax of Forms 17 Commissioner (8T)
Value Added Non-submission Commerical T:
Tax and Central MR 7.89 318 2015-16 Comiierical Tax
Sales Tax of Forms, Officer
. B Deputy
Goods and - - N , . S .
;t(:(\)(];“;:\ Act Fax 6,57 0.43 2017-18 Commissioner, Abids
Se - Tan | STU-1
Value Added Nom-sibliission Deputy
Tax and Central | vy oIS 2.45 0.49 2017-18 Commissioner of
e of Forms.
Sales Tax State Tax o
Value Added o . . Lo
Fax and Conal I\:)?-s-ub‘lm.xsu)n 622 ) 201516 Dv (,.()41}}.1'{}155(15)2‘1L1 of
Sales Tax of Forms. Commercial Tax
‘ 201112, 2012-
Non submission 13.2013- Excise & Taxat
Central Excise | of Cerificates 06 : 19,2014 Ot £ aaon
and Forms 15,201 5- et
B 10,2016-27 1
Value Added Non-submission 2009-10,2012- Asst. Commissioner
Tax and Cenwral | of Forms and 0.52 0.06 13,2013 e Lomitssone:

of Commercial Taxes
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Amount
Demand paid ’ o . . .
Name of Statute | Natare of dues (Rs. undar Year t(). Whlc_h Forum )Vh@m .
Crores) protest amount refates appeal is pending
(Rs.
Crores)
Service Tax Tax 0.91 - 2012-13 [he Commissioner of
Central Excise
Value Added Non-submission
Tax and Central °T C 1.39 - 2017-18 High Court
Sales Tax ot fors
Viin) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are ne transactions which
are not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
meome during the year in Tax Asscssment of the Company. Also, there are no previously

unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Ience, the
provision of paragraph 3(viii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

1x) {a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thercon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

{c} In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has
not taken any term loan during the year and hence the provisions of paragraph 3(ix)(¢) is not
applicabie.

(d)  According fo the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
COmpany.

(e} According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statemets of the Company, we report that the company has not taken
any lunds from an any entity or person on account of or (o meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, asseciates or joint ventures.

{fy According 1o the information and explanations given (o us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held m s seeurities, joint venfures or associate companies.

x) {a}  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instrurents) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3
(x}(a} of the Order arve not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the vear.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(x}Db) of the Order are not applicable 1o the

Company.
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i)y () Based upon the audit procedures performed by us, to the best of our knowledge and belief and
according o the information and explanations given 10 us by the Management, no iraud by
the Company or frawd on the Company by its officers or employee has been noticed or
reporied during the year.

(b)  In view of what is reported above, the provisions of paragraph 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(¢)  We have considered the whisile blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

Xil) {a) o owr opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 1s
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3{xii) (a) to (¢) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

Ki1i) According to the information and explanations given o us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the refated parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and
records produced before us, the Company has an infernal audit system commensurale with the
size and nature of its business;

{h)  We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit.

Xv) Avcording to the information and explanations given {0 us, in our opinion during the year the

Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
its dircctors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi} (2} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

{b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.
Henee, the provision of paragraph (xvi)b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{c}  The Company is not a Core mvestment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Mence, the reporting under paragraph (xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(Y The Company does ot have any CHC as part of it group, HMence the provisions of paragraph
3 xvi (d) of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company.
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XVii

xviii)

XX}

xX) (@)

(b)

XX1)

& MISTRYLLP

According o the information explanation provided w us, the Company has mcwred cash
josses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Effeet of
Unquantified qualifications has not been considered.

(Rs. incrores)
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cash loss 63.36 234 .46

3
t
P
"
[
;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions
of paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order are not appiicable to the Company.

According to the information and cxplanations given 1o us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that a0
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the Company is capable of
meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance sheer as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section {5) of Scetion 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other
than ongoing projects. Accordingly, provision of paragraph 3{xx)(a) of the Order i1s not
applicable to the Company.

There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013 pursuant to any ongoing project, which is required to be transferred to special
account in compliance with the provision of subsection (6) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xx(b)) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no corument in respect of paragraph 3(xxi) has
been included in the report.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 104607W/W100166

Jay
o E
rariner

Membership No: 124658

nshed K. Udwadia

UDIN: 22124 ¢59BRMZNV 2804
Mumbai, September 29, 2022
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Annexure B to the Independeni Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred 1o in ¢lause {g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our Independent Auditors’ Report (o the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements {or the year ended March 31, 2022:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 1o the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited (“the Company™} as of March 31, 2022, in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the ycar
cnded on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is yesponsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of infernal financial contrals over financial reporting issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (*ICAP). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issucd by 1CAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls aperated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audis involves performing procedures 0 obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial contrels with reference o these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of interal controt based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of these standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether duce to fraud or error.

We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriaie to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements.
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Meaning of {nternal Financial Controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference o these standalone Ind AS financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial yeporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with penerally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financiai statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detait, accurately and fairty reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only i accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
deteetion of unavthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that ¢ould have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial congrols with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatemnents duc to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these standaione Ind AS financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In aur opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described in the ‘Basis for
Qualified Opinion’ paragraph below, on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standatone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statoments were operating effectively as of March 31, 2022, based on
the internal control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit fests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2022 standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and these material weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the standalone
Ind AS fmancial statements of the Company.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given fo us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified in the operating cifectiveness of the Company’s internal
Gnancial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements as at March 31, 2022:

i) The Company’s overall Financial Closing Reporting Process needs improvement i 1erms of
maker-checker principle and adequate timely reviews of financial information.
b) System generated Reports such us "ZCUSAGE and ZDSTMT reports which gives the
information regarding owstanding trade receivables, advance from customers, total billings,
_advances reccived and unbilled Jisting, needs review and examination by management to ensure
X completeness and correctness of information contained i those reports for the purposc of
\‘ﬁn:-mciul reporting,
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We have been informed the Company is taking steps to improve these processes and strengthening the

monitoring controls.

A ‘material weakness® is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal {inancial control
with reference to standalone financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No: 104607W / WI100166

Membership No: 124658
UDIN No. 2212465 88RMZ Vit 250l
Mumbai, September 29, 2022



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet
as af March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

Assets

Non-currenf asseds
Property, Plant and FEquipment
Capital Work-mn-Progress
Right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets
Financial asscts

(i) Investments

(i) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Nom-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current asscts

Current assets

Inventorics

Financial asscts

{i) Investments

(11} Trade receivables

(1i1) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents
(v) Loans

(vi) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Asset held-for-sale

Total current assets

Total assets

Note

19

31 Muarch 2022

31 March 2021

140.75 180.57
- 0.33
28.29 4.16
1.60 2.87
94.79 83.09
12.93 17.05
43.90 75.00
65,75 36.30
6.46 6.23
394.47 405.60
34.40 51.15
6.79 0.69
1.248.61 1,325.35
48.72 64.34
49,72 46,78
2,859.24 2,091.30
230.46 240.80
1,119.70 1,186.91
9.39 -
5,601.03 5,007.32
5,995.50 541292




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet
a8 il Moreh 2022

(Currency : Indian rupecs in crores)

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares

Other cquity

- Capital redemption reserve

- Securities premium account

- Retained camings

- General Reserve

~ Other comprehensive income

Perpetual Loan

Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(1) Borrowings

(i1} Lease liabilities

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Note

[
o

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

29.37 29.37
1,802.50 1,802.50
1,831.87 1,831.87

50.00 50.00

560.04 560.04
(614.33) (409.39)
13.39 13.39
1.09 (0.69)
10.19 213.35
958,21 -
2,800.27 2,045.22
750.00 14.97
24.76 2.22
17.29 19.38
792.05 36.57




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet

as ol March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in croves)

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current lHabilitics
Financial liabilitics
(1) Borrowings 23 637.26 1,063.46
{11} Lease liabilities 4.1 5.46 2.41
(iil)y Trade payables 26
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23.34 113.25
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,096.53 1,382.58
sinall enterprises
(iv} Other financial liabilitics 27 1095.90 147.38
Other current liabilities 28 479.00 561.16
Provisions 20 44.28 53.63
Current fax liabilities (net) 30 7.41 7.26
Total current abilities 2,403.18 3,331.13
Total liabilities 3,195.23 3,367.70
Totai equity and liabikities 5,995.50 5,412.92
Significant accounting policies
Notes fo the standalone financial statements 7

The attached notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry 1.LP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Firm's Registration No: 104607W/W100166 CIN:U31200MH1974PTC0O17538
W o\ .
T T
I;}:mshed K. Udwadia Zarine Daruvala Khurshed Daruvala
Pariner Director Divector
Membership No: 124658 DIN: 00190585 DIN: 00216905
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai

September 29, 2022

///7)

/,.-3_';'/ >
A - .
Paaamesh“ ar llc;,da ’ K. P, Hariharan
Chief Financial Ojficer Compainy Secreiary
Membershup No: 203490 Membership No: A-3165
Mumbai Mumbai

September 29, 2022



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
baw)

Standalone statement of profit and loss

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Curreney : Indian rupees in crores)

Income
Revenue {rom operalions
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of consfruction materials, stores and spare parts

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Direct project costs
Employee benefits expense

INANCe Costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses
{L.oss) before exceptional items and income tax

Exceptional items
Provision for impairment of loans to subsidiaries

{1.0ss) before income tax
Tax expense:

Current tax
Deferred tax (credit) / charge

ioss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Hems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(1} Remeasurements of defined benefit lability

Lip iniva L lvis 105 pia

Nore

Ly
oy

47

(11} Income tax relating to items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive (Joss) for the year

0 R,
f{//
\A
i e

i
AL

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

2,144.15 2,278.30
22425 255.92
2,368.40 2,534.22
1,262.20 1,443.15
2.75 2.0]
§28.28 850.54
180.03 202.96
97.30 192.26
23.86 31.68
105.96 118.29
2,500.38 2,840.89
(131.98) (306.67)
40,00 §
(171.98) -
1.87 0.79
31.10 31.73
32.97 32.52
(204.95) (339.19)
178 6.72
1.78 0.72
(203.17) (338.47)




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency @ Indian rupees in ¢rores)
Basic carnings per share (EPS) (Rs.)
Diluted earnings per share (DEPS) (Rs.)

Sigaificant accounting policies

Notes to the standalone financial statements

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(69.78) (115.49)
(69.78) (115.49)

/

The attached notes arc an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

Yor Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
whartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 104607W/W 100166

"

( {

Japished K. Udwadia
Partner

Membership No: 124658
Mumbal

September 29, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
CIN:U31200MH1974PTCO17538

\
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Zarine Daruvala Khurshed Daruvala
Director Director
IDIN: 00190585 DIN: 00216903
Mumbai Mumbai

-_7_’,,,:4;) e
P ' ,,///
b I

7 _~KP, Hariharan

Company Secrelary
Membership No: A-5165
Mumbat

Parameshwar Hegde
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 203490
Muombai

September 29, 2022



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Standalone statement of cash flow

o the year ended 3] March 2022

(Curreney : Indian rupees in crores}

A)

B}

Cash flows from operating activities

{Loss) before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Supplier balances written back

Provision for gratuity

Provision for feave encaghment

Bad debts wrilten of[

(Write back\Provision for bad and doubtful debis written back
Interest acereed on receivables writfen of [

Loans and advances written ofl

Loss on sate of property, plam and equipments (net)

Property, plant and equipment writien ofl

{(Write back) / provision for 1oss on onerous contracts
Provision for liquidated damages {net}

Pividend income

Guarantee commission

Finance costs

Interest income

Financial assets measured ai FYTFL - net change in fawr value
Loss on sale of investments (net}

Provision for impairment of loan

Gain on foreclosure of fease reatal

Unrealised foreign exchange loss {net}

Operating logs before working capital changes

Working capital adjustmenis

([zcrease} i inventories

{lncrease) i trade receivables

DecreaseMIncrease) in loans and advances

{Increase) i other financial assels

{Increase) in other current and non-current assels

tncrease in trade payable, other current Habilities and provisions
Net change in working capital

Cash flows (used in)/ generated from operating activities
Income tax {paid) (net}

Effects of exchange differences on translation of assets and fiabilities
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activitics
Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in equily shares of a subsidiary

Procecds from investment

{Purchase) of non-current imvestments

{Purchase) of carrent investments

Procecds from sale of current investments

(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from saje of property, piant and cquipment

{Purchasc) of fixed dep

$its, et

L.oan given to subsidiaries(net)

Imterest reeeived

Nef cash (ased in) investing activities

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(171.98) (306.68}
23.86 31.68
(11.41) (1645}
(2.24) {1.32)
(6.33) {4.36)
27.29 19.07
(14.93) {1.26)
- 38.67
1.04 .
(0.27) (4.0%)
6.40 -
8.60 (3.88)
(11,46} 243
{200} -
(1.20) (3.05)
97.30) 192.27
{161.45) (21761
{6.90) 218
- 2.37
40,00 -
0.47 .
34.65 21.71
(15150 (248.26)
16,75 .89
59.21 33225
(26.39) (8.56}
11.54 301.54
5119 (21.67)
(404.71) 50.62
(29240 673.07
(443.91) 434 .81
31 24,80
0.17 0,12
(A} (474.91) 519.73
(4.88) (3.03)
- 020
0.02) -
- (12750
- 12533
(3.2%) {17.08)
11.81 16.33
1,32 10
(794.49) {469.62)
161.45 22264
" (628.09) (245.37)




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Standalone statement of cash flow

Jor the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022

(Curveney @ Indian rupees in crores)

')

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of compulsorily converitble preference shares
Non convertibie Debentures obtained

Unsceured loans obtained

Unsceured loans repaid

Inerease i cash credit from banks (nel}

Secured loans obtained

Repayment of secured loans (net)

Repayment of lease liabilities

Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activitics
Net movement in currency translation

Net imerease in eash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes :
The standatone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 ("ind AS 77) on

Staterment of Cash Flows.

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- 300.60
- (160.00)
1,709.94 283.70
{1,249.61) (498.76}
9,48 10.39
1,338.59 429.69
(587.56) (448.77)
{8.28) (11.31)
(125.18) {175.53)
() 1,087.38 {270.62)
m - 0.08
A+ B+CeD) (15.62) 382
64,34 60,52
1877 64.34

Cash comprises cash on hand and current accounts. Cash cquivalents are short-terms balances (with an osiginal maturity of three months or less from

the date of acquisition).

The Company's banks have lien on fixed deposits aggregating Rs.50.83 crore {315t March 2021: Rs. 52.47 crore) against the Bank Gaurantees issued

on behalf of the Company/Borrowing by the Company,
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
- iy current accousls
Chegues in hand
Cash oa hand

.
o,

V&g
f‘; ,/-‘——\\_\-\#:7/&\
PR T X L R

‘ { €\f;‘Ul\f|¥3/J.§\} )

Y

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

47,93 6393
.08 .14
.71 0.27

48.72 64.34




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flow
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Curreney  Indian rupees in erores)

5 The mavement of borrowings as per bl AS 7 is as follows:

Changes in fabilities arising from financing aciivity, including both changes arising from cash (lows and non-cash changes:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing kelivities

Particalars As at Changes Non-cash As at
FAprit 2021 considered in changes 31 March 2622

tire standalone {including

statement of foreign

cashilows exclange

adjustihent)
Long-term borrowings 14.97 735.03 - 750,04
Shart-tersn borrowings 1,863.46 485.80 - 637.26
Particulars As at Changes Non-cash As at
1 April 2020 considered in changes 31 March 2021

the standatone (inchuding

statement of forcign

cashilows exchange

adjustment)
Long-term borrowings 44.68 (29.71) - 14,97
Short-term borrowings F,416.95 {353.49) 1,063.46

The attached notes are an integral part of these standalone financial staements,

As per ous report of even date altached.

For Kalyaniwnlln & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 104607W/WI00166

ted K. Udwadia
Partner
Membership No: 124638
Mumbai

¢ September 29, 2022

For and en behalf of tie Board of Directors of
Sterking and Wilson Private Limited
CINAUZIZO0MBEI974PTCO1 7538

H . { \_\
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/ﬁ—f

Farine Dardvala Kiturshed Daruvala

Director Director
N 00190585 DIN; 00216905
Munmbai Mumbai

K. P. Hariharan

Company Secrefary
Membership No: A-3163
Mumbai

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 203490
Mumbai

September 29, 2022
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as at 3] March 2022

{a

h

Buackground

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited ("the Company™) is one of India's leading Mechanical, Electricals
and Plumbing and Fire-fighting services (collectively known as "MEP services"). The Company has a
pan India presence and international operations in Middle East, South East Asia, Africa, Europe and
Australia,

The Company is specialised in complete turn-key solutions, offering a large spectrum of services fike
clectrical contracting, heat ventilation and air-conditioning systems, public health and safety, LV
systems, EPC contracting and data centre solutions with having experience of executing more than 3,500
projects.

The Company was established in 1927 as Wilson Electric Works. The Company was renamed as Sterling
and Wilson Electricals Private Limited in 1974 and subsequently as Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
in financial year 2007, The name has been changed to Sterling and Wilson Limited on 24 fune 2009 and
subscquently as Sterling and Wilson Private Limited on 7 November 2014.

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited is a subsidiary of Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited,
effective from 17 April 2008.

Basis of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements

Statement of compliance

The accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Siandards (Ind AS)
as notitied by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant rules issued thereafter.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on September 29, 2022.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest two decimal places
in crores, unless otherwise stated.

Current/ non-curreant classification

The Schedule 11 to the Act requires assels and liabilities (o be classified as either current or non-current.
Assels

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criterza:

(i3 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal
operating cycle;

(if} it is expected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting date;

(iii) it is heid primarily for the purposes of being traded; or

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it 1s restricted from being exchanged or used 10 settie a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date. =775
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

MNotfes to the standalone financial statements
as of 31 March 2022

o

&

(i)

All other assets are classificd as non-current.
Liabilitics
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1) it is expected to be settied in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(i) it is due to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date;

(i} it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast
twelve months from the reporting date.

All other Habilitics are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normai
operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule 111 to the Act.

In respect of the engineering, procurement and construction services (EPC) segment of the Company,
the construction projects usually have long gestation periods and based on the nature of services and the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 36 months for the purpose of current - non-current
classification of assets and liabilities. For the other operations, the operating cycle is ascertained as 12
months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of the asscts and liabilitics.

Basis of measurement

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following::

- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy regarding financial insiruments); and

- employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the standatone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses. The aciual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertaintics that have a significant risk of resulting in & material adjustiment

in the vear ending 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Evaluation of percentage of completion

Determination of revenue under pereenfage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates,

g )
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone {inancial statements
as af 31 Mearceh 2022

(1i)

(¥ii)

(iv)

(v)

to completion, the expected revenue from the project or acfivity and foreseeable fosses to completion.
Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if
any, to estimates is recognised in the standalone Drancial statements for the period in which such changes
are determined.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipnient

The Company estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected Lo be available for use. The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and on the
historical experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results from operations could
be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above, The
amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors
and circumstances. The estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due (o physical wear and tear, lechnical o commercial obsolescence and
legal or other Himits on the usc of the assets.

Recoverability of deferred income fax assets

In determining the recoverability of deferred income tax assets, the Company primarily considers current
and expected profitability of applicable operating business segments and their ability to utilise any
yrecorded tax assets, The Company reviews its deferred income tax assets at cvery reporting period end,
taking into consideration the availability of sufficient current and projected taxable profits, reversals of
faxablc temporary differences and tax planning strategies.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations and other employee benefit obligations

The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity benefit scheme is caleulated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employces have earned in retumn for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted,

Compensated absences which arc not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services arc recognised as a liability at the present value of the
other long-term employment benefits,

The preseni value of the obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date by
an Independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises cach period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures. The obligation is measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rates used for determining the present
qent secy £y

value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yieids on Government securl
as at the balance sheet date.

Provision for obsolete inventory

The Company reviews its inventory to assess loss on account of obsolescence on a regular basis. In
defermining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded i the standalone statement of profit
and loss, the Company makes judgments as 1o whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is any future saleability of the product, including demand forecasts and shetf life of the product. The
provision for obsolescence of inventory is based on the ageing and past movement of the inventory.
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as ai 31 March 2022

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

Impairment losses on trade receivables

The Company reviews its trade receivables to assess impairment at regular infervals. The Company's
credit risk is primarity attributable to its trade receivables. In determining whether impairment losscs
should be reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss, the Company makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there s a measurable decrease in the estimated fulure
cash flows. Accordingly, an allowance for expected credit loss is made where there is an identified loss
event or condition which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability
of the cash flows.

In case of trade reccivables, lease receivables and contract assets, the Company follows a simplified
approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognition as loss atlowance. For all
other financial assets, cxpected credit losses are measured at an amound equal to the 12-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured
at lifetime of ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ail possible defaults events over the expected
life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events
that are possible within 12-months from the reporting date.

Impairment losses on investient

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carricd at amortised cost annuatly, or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than it carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for,

Measurenment of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial asscts and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of tair values, which
includes overseeing all significant fair value meaasurements, including Level 3 fair values by the
management. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjusiments. i third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used o measure fair values, then the
management assesses the evidence oblained from the third partics to support the conciusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reported o the Company’s Board of
Drirectors.

Fair values are categorised into different Jevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used i the
valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
sither directly (i.c. as prices) or indireety (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3t inputs for the asset o Labibity that arc not pased on ohservable market data {unobservable

inputs}. D e
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as cf 31 Mearch 2022

(ix)

3.1

When nicasuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uscs observable market data as far
as possible. 1f the inputs used to measure the fair value ol an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same ievel of
the fair value bicrarchy as the Jowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:-

- Note 48 ~ Financial Instruments.

L.eases

The Company evaluates i an arangement gualifics (o be a lease as per the reguirements of Ind AS 116,
identification of a icase requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated rencwals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option,
In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to
exercise an option fo terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
cconomic incentive for the Company fo exercise the option to extend the lease, or not o exercise the
oplion o terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is gencratly based on the incremental borrowing rate
specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics,

Significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only i, it is probable
that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably and is measured at cost. Subsequent to recognition, all items of property, plant
and equipment (except for frechold land) are stated at cost fess accumulated depreciafion and accumulated
impairment losses.

If the cost of an individual part of property, plant and equipment is significant relative to the total cost of
the item, the individual part is accounted for and depreciated separately.

The cost of property, plant and cquipment comprises its purchase price plus any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assct to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manney
intended by management and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities,
it any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only i1t 13 probable that the future cconomic benefits
associated with the expenditure wit! flow to the Company.

Ttems such as spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing that mects the definition of property, plant
and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated over the useful life. Cost of repairs and maintenance

are recognised in the standalone staiement of profit and foss as and when mewred,




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
s af 31 March 2022

3.2

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Assets under construction includes the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not ready to use at
the balance sheet date. Advances paid to acquire property, plant and equipment before the balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non-current assets. Assets under construction are not depreciated as these
assets are not yet available for use,

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using the straight line method in the
manner and at the rates prescribed by Schedule 11 of the Act, except for certain items of plant and
machinery (such as welding machine, drilling machine, porta cabin etc. whose aseful life has been
estimated to be five years) wherein depreciation is provided based on the estimated useful Hves of the
plant and machinery so acquired, determined by the Company's management based on the technical
evaluation carried out by the projects team. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-
rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of). The useful lives used, as
set out in the following table, are fower than or as those specified in Schedule 1T of the Act as under :

Assels Life in no. of years Schedule 1T useful
lives

Office buildings 60 years GO years

Plant and equipment 5 years 1o 15 years 15 years

Furniture and fixwures 3 years to 10 years 10 years

Vehieles 8 years to 10 years & years to 10 years

Computer hasdware 3 years 10 6 years 3 years / 6 years

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Lease hold improvements are amortised over the primary lease period or the useful life of the assets,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach financial year-end and adjusted
i appropriate.

Assets costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year/period of purchase.

Other intangible assets
Intangibic assets comprise primarily of computer software (including enterprise systems). Intangible
assets are initially recorded at cost and subsequent to recognition, intangible asscts are stated at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Other intangible assets are amortised over an expected benefit period of one (0 five years using siraight
hine method.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as afl 31 March 2022

3.3

{et)

()

The amortisation peried and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is
reviewed at the end of cach financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates,
such changes is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of intangible asset is
measured as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and Joss in the period the assel is derecognised.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise (o a f{inancial asset of one entity and a financial
Hability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial lability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profii and loss (FVTPL), fransaction costs hat are dircetly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financiat asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVQCI - debt investient;

- FVQCI — cquity investment; or

- FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 1s not
designated as at TVTPL:
~ {he assei is held within a business model whose objective is Lo hold assets to collect contractual cash
[Tows; and

the contractual terms of the firancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debl investment is measured at FVOCTif itmeets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

the assel is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coliccting confractual
cash Mows and selling financial assets; and
----- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified daies to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as ai 31 March 2022

On initial recognition of an equily mvestiment that is not heid for trading, the Company may irrevocably
eleet to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCT - equity
investment). This election is made on arr investment- by-investment basis.

Al} financial assels not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as deseribed above are
measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial asscts. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise mects the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting
misimatch that would otherwise arisc.

Financial assets; Business model assessment

The Company makes an agsessment of the objective of the business model in which a financia)l asset is
held at a portfolio tevel because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management, The information considered inchudes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on carmning contractual interest income, maintaining &
particutar interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

Financial assets: Business model assessment (Continued)

~ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business medel (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business arc compensated - ¢.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial asscts in prior periods, the reasons for such saics
and expectations about future saies activity.

Transfors of financial assets to third partics in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for tading or arc managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether coptractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
inferest

For the purposes of this assessment, *principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular peried of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solefy payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial assct
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such thai it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount oy timing of cash flows;

terms that wiay adiust the contractuat coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features; ai
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Motes to the standalone financial statements
as af 31 March 2022

~ terms that limit the Company’s claim 1o cash flows from specified assets {¢.2. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for carty termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired al a significant discount or premium 1o its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for carly termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gainy and losses
(i} Financial assets at FVTPL:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

{ii} Financial assets af amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the standatone statement of profitand loss. Any gain or koss on derceognition
is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

{ifi} Debt investments af FYOCT:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to the standalone statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Equity investments at FVOCT:

These assets arc subseguently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
standalone statement of profit and loss unjess the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCT and are not reclassified to the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

Financial iabilities: Classificaiion, subsequent micasurement aind gains and losses

Financial Habilities are classified as measwred at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial Hability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classificd as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initia! recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interesi expense, are recognised in the standajone statement of profit and loss. Other
financial liabilities are subscquently measured al amortised cost using the cffective nterest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognised in the standalone statement of profit and
toss. See Note 3.3 (¢) for financial Habilities designated as hedging mstruments,




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
as af 31 March 2022

(c)

(d)

Derecognition
Financial assety

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual vights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights (o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantiatly all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain controt of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Financial liabiliticy

The Company derccognises a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a tegally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
cither to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Derivative financial instriuments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign cumrency risk exposurcs.
fmbedded derivatives arc separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract
is not a {inancial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge variability in cash flows
associated with highly probabic forccast ransaciions arising from changes in foreign cxchange rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged
item and hedging instrument are expected to offset cach other.

Cash flone hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash (low hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the
fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCT and accumulated in the other equity under ‘eficetive

portion of cash flow hedges'. The cffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is
recognised in OCI is limited 1o the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
ax af 31 March 2022

3.4

3.5

present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivatives is recognised immediately in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

When the hedged forceast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item such
as inventory, the amount accumulated in other equity is included directly in the initial cost of the non-
[inancial item when it is recognised. For all other hedged forccast transactions, the amount accumulated
in other equity is reclassified to the standalone statement of profit and loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, 18
terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, When hedge accounting
for cash flow hedges is discontinucd, the amount that has been accumulated in other equity remains there
until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-
financial item's cost on its initial recognition or for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the same peried or periods as the hedged expected future cash
flows affect profit or loss,

If the hedged future cash flows are ne longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been
accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ox paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

(i) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
(i1} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statemnents are categorised within the fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels, as described
as follows, the inputs to valuation technigues used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level |inputs) and the
fowest priority (o unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

Level 11 quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Habihiies.

fevel 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liabilily, cither directly or indirectiy.

Level 3¢ inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between fevels in the hicrarchy
by re-assessing categorisation at the end of cach reporting period.

Inventories

Construction material, stores and spare parts af central stores comprises of modules, wircs, cables,
components and spares. Stock in trade comprises of Tand acquired for Solar EPC projects.
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Inventorics are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value; cost is determined on the moving weighted
average method basis, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business.
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sake.

Statement of cash flows

The Statement of cash flows are prepared using the Indireet method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operaling cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term fixed bank deposits that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts and cash credit
facility that form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held
for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication cxists, or when annual impairment testing for an agset is required, the
Corporation estimates the assot’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or Cash-Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not gencrate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Employee benefits
Shori-ternr employee benefirs

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A-liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid ¢.g., under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be cstimated reliably.

Post-employviment henefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan for the post-employment benefit of an cmpioyee under which the
Company pays fixed periodic contributions o Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Corporations in accordance with Indian regulations. The Company has no further legal or constructive
obligation to pay once contributions are made, Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the periods
during which ihe related services are rendered by employees. Inrespect of forcign branch, the Company’s
contribution towards defined contribution benefit plan is accrued in compliance with the domestic laws
of the country in which the standalone foreign branch operates.
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(i) Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect
of the gratuity benefit scheme is caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
carned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credt Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employce benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation, The obligation is measured at the present vaiue of the estimated
future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present vatue of the obligation under defined
benefit plan, are based on the market yields on Government sccwrities as at the batance sheet date.

All remeasurement gains and losses arising from defined beneiit plans are recognised in the standalone
statement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur and not reclassified to the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount ratc
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net nterest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the standalone statement of profit ard loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the standalone
statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employment benefits, other than gratuity, is the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the cumrent and prior
periods, The obligation is calculated at the balance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation done
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit Method and is discounted to its present value
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Compensated absences which are not expected 10 oceur withis tweive months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under long term cmployment benefits, arc based on the market yields on
Government securitics as at the balance sheet date.

- Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past cvent, the Company has a present fegal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable thut an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expeeted future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the tme value of money and the
R
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risks specific to the Hability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is niade.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected ceonomic benefits (o be derived by the Company
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision
is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the asscts associated with that confract.

Revenue recognition
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01
April 2018, The Company has applied the following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenie from contracts with customers:

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as sct out in
Ind AS 115

Step 1. ldentify the contract(s} with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between {wo or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service fo the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price (o the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company wili allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satistying cach performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation,
The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, i one of the following
criteria is mel:

{. The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benelits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or

2. The Company's performance creates or enliances an asset {hat the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or
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3. The Company's performance does not create an assct with an alternative usc to the Group and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue is measured ai the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into accousnt
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Company assesses ils revenue
arrangements against specific criteria o determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company hag
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Revenue fron works contracts

Revenue from works contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognised under the
percentage of completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. The
stage of completion is measured by caleulating the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of a contract. Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method
necessarily imvolves making estimates by the management.

When the Company satisfics a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it
creates a contract asset based on the amount of consideration to be earned by the performance. Where the
amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives

risc to a contract Hability.

Any variations in contract work, claims, and incentive payments are included in the transaction price if it
is highly probable that a signiftcant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are
resolved,

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or
services and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit
cither to the customer or the Company.

Revenue from sale of goods

The Company recognises revenuc from sale of goods once the customer takes possession of the goods.
Revenue respresents the invoice value of goods provided to third parties net of discounts and sales
laxes/value added taxes

Operation and maintenance income:

The Company recognises revenue from Operations & Maintenance services using the time-elapsed
measure of progress i.e input method on a straight-line basis.

Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities oy deliverables are provided under a single arrangement,
cach deliverable that is considered to be a separate unit of account is accounted for separately. The
allocation of consideration from a revenue arrangement o its separate units of account is based on the
relative fair value of each unil. If the fair value of the delivered item is not reliably measurable, then
revenue is allocated based on the difference between the total arrangement consideration and the fair value
of the undelivered item,

Unbilied Revenue, Advances fron Customers, progress payments and retention

Revenue from services performed on contracts from the end of the Jast billing to the balance sheet date 1s
recognised ag unbilled revenue.
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Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are weated as liabilities and adjusied against
progress bitling as per terms of the contract,

Progress payments received are adjusied against amount receivable from customers in respecet of the
contract work performed.

Amounts retained by the customers until the satisfactory completion of the contracts are recognised as
receivables,

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A conlract
is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a coniract conveys the right to control the use of
an asset the Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantiatly all of the capability of a physical distinct asset. {f
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified,

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the tight to dircct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when if has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purposc the asset is used.

As a lessee
Right-af-use assets

The Company recognises a righi-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. At the
commencement date, a Icssee shall measure the right-of-use assct at cost which comprises initial
measurement of the Jease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives reccived, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantiing and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Company measures right-of-use assets at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

At the commencement date, a Jessee shall measure the lease liability at the present vaiue of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The leasc payments shall be discounted using the mterest rate
implicit in the Jease, if that rate can be readily determined. 1f that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee shall use the fessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Shart-term lease and leases of low-yvalue assers

The Company has elected not (o recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shori tesm leases
that have a fease term of less than 12 months ar less and leases of low-value asscts, including IT
Bquipment. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these feases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The clection for shori-term leases shall be made by class of underlying assel to which the right of usc
relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping of underlying asscts of a similar nature and use in
Company’s operations. The election for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value can be made
on 4 lease-by-lease basis.

Recognition of dividend income, interest incone or expense

Dividend income is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss on the date on which the
Company’s right to reccive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to;

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial Lability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, ther: the calculation of interest income reverts fo the gross basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferved tax. it is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination of to an item recognised directly in cquity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or joss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount cxpected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using applicable tax rates (and tax faws} enacted
or substantively enacted by the yeporting date.

Current fax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right fo set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to yealise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simuttancously.

Mininum Alternative Tax (‘*MAT")

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as
current tax in the standalone statement of profit and loss, The credit available under the Act in respect of
MA'T paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and 1o the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried
forward for sct-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an deferred tax asset 18
reviewed at each batance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convineing cvidence no
Jonger exists.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temparary differences between the carrying amounts of asscls and
liabilities for financial reporting purposcs and the corresponding amounts used for laxation purposcs.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilitics in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting noy taxabie profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

- temporary differences related fo investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to controf the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable emporary differences ansing on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Defesred tax assets are recognised ta the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses 18 strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recogniscs a deferred tax asscl only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
(hat the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply fo the period when the asset i realised
or the lability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the fax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and habilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current fax
liabititics and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different fax entities, but they intend to setlle current 1ax liabilities and asseis on a net basis
or their tax assets and labilities witl be realised simultancously.

Foreign currency

oreign curFrency transactions
- Initial Recognition
All transactions that are not denominated in the Company’s functional currency arc foreign currency
ransactions. These transactions arc initially recorded in the functional cutrency by applying the
appropriate daily rate which best approximates the actual rate of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions scttled during fhe year are recognised in the standalone statement

of profit and Joss.

- Measurement of foreign cuarrency iteins ar the reporiing daie
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Monetary assets and labilities denominated 1 foreign currencies are translated ino the funclional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and labilitics that are measured
al fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
Fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss, except exchange differences arising from the
translation of the equity investments classified as fair value through OCH (FVOCI) which 1s recognised in
OCL

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (branches) including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, arc translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are (ranslated mto INR at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual
rate at the date of the transaction,

Exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and accumulated in Equity (as
exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a forcign operation).

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are inferest and other costs {including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment (o interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of that assel. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term

investments.,

Any reductions in the carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited fo the
standalone statement of profit and foss.

Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and dutics.

Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of first in first out (FIFO) basis of carrying
amount of investment disposed off

Eariings per share

The basic earnings per share ("EPST) is computed by dividing the net profit aftributable to equity
shareholders for the period, by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the
period,

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average pumber of cquity and dilutive (potential) cquity
equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the results would be anti-dilutive.
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3.21

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such evenis is adjusted with the standaione financial statements.
Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifics new standard or amendments to the existing
standards, There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Recentf Prornouircenienls
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules as issued from time to time.
On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment

iy

Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April 2022, as below:
Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of
assets and Habilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the
requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company docs not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds bhefore intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost
in profit or loss. The Company does 1ot expect the amendments 0 have any impact in its
recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its standalone financial statements.

ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specity that that the “cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘cosis that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly o a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract {(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that refate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is esseniially a clarification
and the Company does not expeet the amendment 1o have any significant impact m is
standalone financial statements,
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Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of
nd AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by
the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The
Company does not expect the amendment fo have any significant impact in its standalone
financial statements.
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Sterfing and Wilson Private Limited

wotes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

s al Mareh 2022

{Currency - Indian rupees in crores)

4.1

A}

B)

Disclosure under Ind AS 116, Leases

Right-of-use assets

Cost

Balance as at | April 2021
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as av 1 April 2021
Add: Deprectation for the year
Bajance as at 31 March 2022
Carrying amounis

Balance as at ¥ April 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Land and
Buikdings *

23.97
34.95
(4.16)
54.76

1981
6.6D
26.47

4.16
28.29

Total

2397
34.95
(4.16)
54776

19.81
6.66
16.47

4.16
28.29

# Carrying amount of Right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period is lowards property taken on lease for office premises, the
underlying leaschold improvements is presented i note 4.1 under "Propenty, ptant and equipiment and capital work-in-progress”.

Following is the movement in Lease liabilities:

Balance as at 1 Aprii 2020

Add: Additions

Add: Finance cost accrued during the year

Add/Less: Effect of foreign currency wanslation

Add/Less: Non cash movements for acquisition and disposals
Less: Payments of lease labikities

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Add: Additions

Add: Finance cost accrued during the year

Add/Less: Effect of foreign currency translation

Add/Less: Non cash mavements for acquisition and disposals
Less: Payments of Iease liabilities

Balance as a4 31 March 2022

Amount recognised in the statement of profif & loss

Amount
14.86

1.G7

1131
4.62
34.95
3.54

(4.62)
.28
3021

Depreciation on Land and Buildings

31 March 2022
6.60

31 March 2022

9.91

Interest expense
Short-ter fease expense

Low value fease expense

Expense relating Lo variable lease payments not included in lease Habilities

Total

31 March 2022

31 March 2022

3.54 1.7
22,23 2149
25.717 21.56




Sterling and Wilson Private Limmted
g

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Conrined)

as at Marel 2022

(Currency ; Jadian rupees o crores)

4.1 Disclosure under Ind AS 116, Leases (Contineed)

) Cash oufflow on leases

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Repayment of lease Habilities {Including Inierest on lease linbilities) §.28 11.31
Short-term lease expense 22.23 e
Total cash outflow on leases 30.51 21.22
m Maturity analysis of lease linbilitics
31 March 2022 Less than Between 1 2and 3 Over 5 years Tatal Weighted
b year and 2 years years AVETREe
effective
inferest rafe
Yo
Leasc Habilitics 8,57 8.57 19.46 24 3876 11.50%
8.57 8.57 19.40 211 38.70
31 March 2023 Less than  Between i 2and § Over 5 years Total Weighted
i year and 2 years years average
effective
interest rate
Leasc liabilities 2.76 0.78 1.29 0.84 3.67 H1.50%
2.76 0.78 1.29 0.84 5.67




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Conitinued)

ay al March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

5

a)

b}

Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Particulars

Gross carrying amount :

Balance as at § April 2020

Add: Exchange differences on transfation of forcign operations
Add: Additions during the year

Less: Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at § April 2021

Add: Exchanpe differences on translation of foreign operations
Add: Additions during the year

Less: Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses:

Balance as at 1 April 2020

Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Add: Amortisation for the vear

Less: Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at } April 2021

Add: Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Add: Amortisation for the year

Less: Disposals during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2822

At 31 March 2021

Computer Total
software
15.15 15,15
(0.03) (0,03}
0.05 0.05
2.75 2.75
12.42 12.42
12.42 12.42
(0.113 {0.11)
0.26 0.26
12.57 12.57
§.45 8.453
(0.02) (0.02)
2.05 2.05
0.93 0.93
9.56 9.50
9.56 9.56
0.10 0.10
1.31 1.31
10.97 10.97
1.640 1.60
2.86 2.86

Notes:

Rs. Nil amount of borrowing cost is capitalised during the cwrent and comparative periods.

As al 31 Mareh 2022, Rs. Nil (As at 31 March 2021 @ Rs. Nil) of impainment loss 1s recognised.

o
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

ay at March 2022

{(Currency © Indian rupees in crores}

6 Non-current investments
Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)
(a) Unquoted, in subsidiaries (at cost}

Sterling and Wilson International FZL

1,000 |31 March 2021 1,000] shares of AED 1,000 each, fully paid-up

Range Consultants Private Limited #

150,000 [31 March 2021: 150,000] shares of Rs. 10 each, fulty paid-up

Sterling and Wilson Security Systems Private Limited

10,000 {31 March 2021: 10,000] shares of Rs. [} each, fully paid-up

Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited

£,375,000 [31 March 2021 ;6,375,004 shaves of Naira | eacly, each fully patd vp

Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions AG

30,000 £31 Mareh 202] : 50.000] shares of CHF 1 each, fully paid up

Sterting and Wilson Middie Last W.L.L.

98 (31 March 2021 : 98] shares of Qatari Riyals 1,000 cach, fully paid up

GCO Australia PTY Ltd

38,000 [31 March 2021 : 38,000] shares of AUD | cach, fully paid up

Sterting & Wilson Nigeria FZE

100,000 [31 March 2021: Nil] shares of USD | each, fully paid-up

Sterting & Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Pvt Lid

3.000,000[31 March 2021: Nili shares of Rs 18 each, fully paid-up

Sterting & Wilson Middle Fast Electro Mechanical L.L.C.

3,000{31 March 2021: Nil] shares of AED 100 each, fully paid-up

i The Company has pledged 100% of equity shares heid by it in ihe share caphal of Range
Consultants Private Limited as a collateral sceurity to secure bank loans.

(b) Unquoted, in Joint Ventures (at vost)

Sterling and Wilson Enel X e-Mobility Pvt Ltd

4,267,621[31 March 2021: Nit ] shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up

Sterting and Wilson Fnet X e-Mobility Private Limited was incorporated on Jaly 19, 2021 having
its registered office in Mumbai, Maharashira, The company is primarily engaged in the business of
clectrie mobility charging infrastructuze services, providing related software toonscs, implementing
and servicing long ferm contractual service agreemeals for clectric vehicles and provision of
ancilliary services.

(¢) Unquoted, in others {at fair value through profit or loss)

Transtet Utilities Lid, URK®#

1O [31 March 2021 : 10] shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid np

SWIB Power Lid*#

10 {31 March 2021 : 10] shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid up

Monjin nterviews Privaie Limited (Refer note 48(b)}

237,037 (31 March 2021: 237,037] shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up

* The investments in Transte! Utilities Lid,, UK and SWB Power Lul. are shown at Cost since the
information abowt the fair value of those investments are ot available. Management is of the view
that the difference between Cost and Fair value is not material.

# The Investment value s less than Rs. 1,00.000

31 March 2022

4.90

001

G.17

.35

4.27

8.0

.00

28.70

31 March 2021

4.96

0.0}

0.17

0.35

0.19

0.1%

0.73

0.40

0.40

19.91



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued}

as el March 2022

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

)

Non-curren! investments (Continired)
Tnvestment in Preference Shares

(Measured af fair value through Profit and loss)
(a) Unquoted, in fellow subsidiaries

Sterling Generators Private Limited

300,000 £31 March 2021: 500,008 4% redeemable, non-convertible, nonr-cunulative preference
shares of Rs 1,000 each, fully paid-up. The preference shares are redeemable after 2 period of §
years from the date of issue either at option of the Company at premium to be fixed based on
expert's valuation report,

Investment in Partnership Firm (at Cost)
Enrich-SWPL 1V

Name of the Pariners Share in Profits (V)
Sterling and Wilson Private Limited 49%%
Enrich RD Infraprojects Private Limited 5%

Total Capital of firm : Rs One lakh only.

The aggregate book vatue of unquoted non-current investments are as follows:

Aggregate carrying amount of non-current investments
Aggregate amount of impainment m value of investments

Other non-current financial assets
Rank deposits® (due to mature after 12 months from reporting date)

{Includes interest acorued on bank deposits Rs. 0.00 crore [31 March 2021: Rs. 0.02 crore])
Security deposits

* Bank deposits to the extent of Rs. 1.25 crore (31 March 2021: Rs. 5.67 crore) is held as margin
money or security against the borrowings, guarantees, other commitments.

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

48.49 50.46

0.01 0.0t
94.79 83.09
94.79 83.09

1.25 5.69
i1.68 1136
12.93 1708




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (Conrinued)
as at March 2022

(Cwrrency  indian rupees in crores)

8 Deferred tax assels (net)
Deferred tax assets
Fployee benefits
Provision for bad and doubtiu} debts
Provision for loans and advances
Provision for loss on onerous contracts
Carry forward business losses
Uinabsorbed depreciation
Mat credit entitiement
Others

Dreferred tax liabilities

ixcess of depreeiation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over book depreciation
Fair vahuation of mvestments

Writchack of Provision for Hauidated damages

Deferred tax assetls, net

Deferved tax assets recognised, net

9 Non-current tax asscts {net)

Advance tax {net of provision for tax Rs. 119.90 crove [31 March 2021: Rs, 81.75 crore]}

fincfudes fringe benefits tax and wealth (axj

14 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

To parties other than related parties
Capital advances

Prepayments

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

20.04 20,04
5.89 3.89
1.83 1.83
322 322

- 3110

19.24 19.24
5.40 5.40
0.23 0.23

58.85 39.95

12.57 12.37
2.13 2.13
0.26 0.26

14.96 14.96

43.594 75.00

43.90 75.00

65.75 36.30

65.75 36.30
3.42 330
3.04 2.93
6.46 6.23




Sterline and Wilson Private Limited
o

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

as at March 2022

(Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

11

12

Inventories

fvalied ai lower of cost or net realisable value unless otherwise stated)
Construction materials, stores and spare parts
{includes inventory in transit Rs. Nil [31 March 2021: Rs. Nil]

Stock-in-trade

Carrving amount of inventories (included above) pledged as secunties for
borrowings

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense inciudes Rs. Nit (31 March
2021 Rs. N provided towards inventory obsolescence.

Current investments

Investment in equity instruments
{Measured at fair value through profit and loss)

Quoted:

Crompton Greaves Consumer Electrical Limited®

6 {31 Mareh 2021 ; 6] Fquity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up

CG Power & Industrial Solution Limited®

6 {31 Mairch 2021 : 6] Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid-up
Ruchi Soya Limited*®

2 [31 March 2021 : 2] Equity shares of Rs. 2 cach, fully paid-up

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

1,232 131 March 2021 : 1232] Equity shares of Re. | each fully paid-up

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

3.93 17.93
30.47 33.22
34.40 51.15

3.93 17.93

0.00 0.00

0.00 (.60

8.00 0.00

6.46 (.39




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

as at March 2022

{Currency @ Indian rupees in crores)

12

Current investiments (Continued)

Unquoted:

Western India Sugar & Chemical Industries Limited®

400 [31 March 2021 : 400] Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid-up
Mid East India Limited*

300 [31 March 2021 : 300] Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid-up
Montari Leather Limited®

1,000 [31 March 2021 : 1,000] Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up
Oteklin Plants and Equipment's Limited*

300 [31 March 2021 : 5001 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
SIV Limited (South India Viscose Limited)

600 |31 March 2021 6003 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, Ry paid-up
Sudhiti Hosiery Limited

2,300 [31 March 2021 1 2,500) Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid-up
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of unquoted current invesiments

Total (a)
* The Investment value is less than Rs. 1,006,600

Investment in debentures
(Measured at amortised cost)

Western India Sugar & Chemical Industries Limited
300 [31 March 2021 : 3097 15% Debentures of Rs. 50 each, fully paid-up

Total (b)
* The Investment value is less than Ry, [,00.000

Investment in mutual funds
{(Measured at fair value through profit and foss)

250,000 units {31 March 2021 : 250,000 units} Union Long Bond Fund Growth

Total {¢)
Total (a +b + ¢}

Apgrepate carrying amount of gueted investments
Aggrepate market vahue of quoted investments
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of imparment in value of investments

tles

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

0.00 0.60
0.00 0.06
8.00 0.00
0.00 6.0G
0.81 G.01
0.01 0.0}
0.03 0.03
0.47 0.38
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
4.31 0.30
0.31 0.30
0.79 0.09
0.47 (.40
0.47 .40
0.03 (.03
0.03 (.03




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Notes (o the standalone financial statements (Confinued)
as af March 2022

(Currency : Indian yupces in crores)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

13. Trade reccivables (refer note 52 for ageing)

{Unyecured)

Trade Receivables (refer note below)

- Considered good 1,248.61 1,325.35
- Considered doubtful 9.26 24.19
1,257.87 1,349.54
Less: Doubtful debts 9.26 24.19
Net trade receivables 1,248.61 1,325,353
Of the above, trade receivables from refated pavties are as below:
Total trade receivables from related partics 107.54 68.51
As at 31 March 2022, trade reeetvables inchudes retention of Rs. 256.79 crore
{31 March 2021 : Rs. 276.34 crore) relating to construction contracts.
Note:
Certain customer balances under Trade Recervable are subject to balance
confirmations and reconciliations, if any. The Company has aiso received
balance confirmation replies from certain customers and are in the process of
reconciling those balances with that as per books of accounts. The management
is of the view that the impact on Statement of Prefit and Loss will not be
material.
Dues from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner or a director or member :
Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Privaic Limited 24.40 27.68
Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Pvt Ltd - 0.62
24,41 28.30




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

ay of Marceh 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

B4

16

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Bank

- 1n current aecounts

Cheques, drafls on hand

Cash on hand

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Batances with banks

- in deposit aceounts®

(with original marurity more than 3 months but fess than 12 months)

(Includes mierest receivable of Ry, 0.04 crove (31 March 2021 © Rs. G.04 crove)

* Bank deposit to the extent of Rs. 49.54 crore (31 March 2021 : Rs. 46.74 crore} is
held as margin money or securily against the bomrowings, guarantees, other
commitments.

L.oans

{Unsecured, considered good)

To related parties (refer note | and 2 below)
~Loans given to subsidianes

- considered good

- eredit impaired

Less: credit impaired

- Other related partics

o parties other than relaled parties
(1) Loan to others

(1) Loan to employees

31 March 2022

31 March 2621

47.93 63.93
0.08 .14
0.7t 0.27

48.72 04.34

49.72 46.78

49.72 46.78

2,841.83 2,004.73
40.00 -
2,881.83 2,004.73
40.00 -
2,841.83 2,004.73

9.55 52.16
6.24 32.59
1.62 1.82
2,859.24 2,003.30




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

as at Mareh 2022

(Cwrrency ; Indian rupees in crores)

16

17

31 March 2022

Loans (Continued)
Dues frem firms or private companies in which any director is a partner or a director or member !

Note I: Loan given to subsidiarics

31 March 2021

Sterfing and Wilson International FZE 1,116.19 1,805.59
Sterting and Wilson Middle East WLL* 86.14 81.00
Sterling & Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited* 124.65 106.58
Sterling and Wilson Middie East Electromechanical L.L.C 1,545.11 -
GCO Australia PTY Limited 12.03 10,90
Sterling & Wilson Nigeria Limited 0.71 0.64
2,881.83 2,004.73
Note 2: Loan to ather related partics
Transte! Utilities Lid UK. 9.55 8.94
Sterling and Wilson International Solar FZCO - 43.23
9.55 52.16

{Loan piven to subsidiaries and other related parties carry an interest rate ranging from 6.75% to 11.89% and is repayable on demand)
*Loan to subsidiaries Sterling and Wilsen Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited Rs 25 erore (31 March 2021 Rs Nil} and Sterling and Wilson

Middle East WLL Rs 15 crore (31 March 2021: Rs Nil) are impaired,

Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
To related parties

(3) Unbilled receivables

Other interest

{i1) Recoverable expenses 11488 195.53

{ii1) Other receivables 1.45 23.26
To parties other than related pariies

(11) Security deposits

- considered good 9.44 16.34

- considered doubtful 0.60 0.60

10.04 16.94

Less: Provision for doubtful deposit 0.60 0.60

9.t 16.34

(1i1) Other receivables 4.63 5.65

230,46 24078




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

ay af March 2027

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

17

18

i9

Other financial assets (Continned)

31 March 2022

Dues front firms or private companies in which any director is & partner or a director or member:

Recoverable expenses

Sterling and Wilson International FZE

Sterling and Wilson Middle Bast WLL

Sterling and Wilson Security Systems Private Limited
Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited

Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited
Sashwat Energy Private Limited

Sterling and Wilson Solar FZCO

Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical L1LC
Lnrich-SWPL IV

STC Power SRL

SWPL-Jindun JV

Other receivables

Sterling Generators Private Limited

Sterling and Wilson Rencwabie Energy Limited (formely Sterling and Wilson Solar
Limited)

Other current asscts
(Uinsecured, considered good)

o related parties

(Advances for supnly of goods

(i1) Unbilled receivables

To parties other than related pariies
Advances for supply of goods

- considered good

- considered doubtful

[ess: Provision for doubtful advances

(1) Unbilled receivables
- considered good
- considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful unbilled receivables

Advance o employees

Osher recoverables

Balance with povernment authorities
Prepayments

Asset held for sale

Piant & Machinery held for saic

31 March 2021

1.20 151.05
1.80 431
1.94 2.17
5.13 4.24
$.80 4.59
0.56 0.56
2.63 255
155.77 -
12.13 18,00
16.57 7.47
1.33 .
7.00 0.57
1.45 2.36
- 20.90
1.82 5.77
57.46 33.07
87.29 80.83
4.65 4.65
91.94 8548
(4.65) (4.65)
87.29 80.83
750,32 817.85
750.32 817.85
750.32 817.85
5.81 12.76
- 0.17
206.36 224,54
10,64 11.92
1,119.70 1,186.91
5,39
9.39 -

Inn Marcl 2022 the management has decided to hive off its Rooftop Independent Power Producers Division. The negotiation for

sale with intercested partics are in process. The aforementioned sale is expected to be completed by April 20

™
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinued)

ax qaf March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

20

{A)

(B}

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lquity share capital
Authorised
50,000,000 Equity shares {31 March 2021 30,000,000 shares} of Rs 10 cach 30.00 50.00
215,00,000 (31 March 2021 : 215,00,000) 0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative 2,150.00 2,150.00
preferenee shaves of Rs 1,000 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid ap:
20,369,333 Equily shares (31 March 2021 ¢ 26,369,333 shares) of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up 29.37 29.37
18,025,000 (31 March 2021 ; 18,025,000} 0% Compuisorily convertible non-cumulative preference 1,802.50 1,802.50
shares of Rs. 1,000 cach, fully paid-up

1,831.87 1,831.87

Reconcilistion of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year :

1 Mareh 2022 3t March 2021

Number Amouni Number Amount
Equity shares
Balanee as at the beginning and end of the year 2,93,69,333 29.37 2,93,69,333 20.37
Add: Issued during the ycar - - - -
Balance as af the end of the year 2,93,69.333 29.37 2,93,69,333 29.37
0% Compulserily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year * 1,50,25,060 1,802,523 1,80.25,600 1,802.50
Add: Issued during the year ¥* - - - -
i.ess: Repayiment during the year - - - "
Balance as at the end of the year 1,80,25,000 1,802,590 1,89,25,000 1,802.50

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a single clags of cquity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s
residual assets. The equity shares arc entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference
shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareiolder an a poll (not on show of hasds) are in proportion fo its share of the paid-up equity capital of
the Company. Voting rights cannol be exercised in respeet of shares on which any calf or other sums presently payable have nof been paid.

ay lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be

Failure 1o pay any amount cafled up on shares m
erential amounts in proportion to the number of equity

entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after disiribution of all pref

shares held.

0% Compilsarily convertible non-cumulative preference shares:
* Compulsority convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issucd en 17 March 2018 cach share s convertible into four equity shares of par
valie Rs. 10 cach afier 36 manths rom the date of issue. The Company has extended the convesion period from March b4, 2021 up to March 14,
2027, e being an additional period of 72 months, Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issued on 10 March 2020 and

cach shave is convertible te four cquity shares of par valug Rs. 10 cach after 240 months from the date of issue.

¥ Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issued on (03 October 2024 and 07 January 2021 and cach share 1 convertibie

o five equity sharves of par valoe Rs. 10 each after 240 months from the date of issuc.

Preference sharcs carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where dividend is not declared in respect of a linancial year, the
entidemen for that fiaancial year lapses. The preference shares are emtitled o one vote per share at meetings of the Company on any resotutions of the
Company direetly affecting their rights. T the event of liquidation, the preference sharcholders' will be entitled 1o receive from the proceeds of Hquidity
event, on par o the holders' of equity shares or seourities convertible into cquity shares, an amount equad (e H00% of the amounts invested by it pius
any dectared but unpaid dividends, To be disinhated pro-raa among the holders' of cquity shares and preference shares of the Company o an as

conveited basis,
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Equity share capital (continued)

Shares feld by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Number Amaunt Number
Fauity shares
Shapeorjt Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 1,94,80,600 19.48 1,94,80,000
Holding Company
0% Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares
Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 95,00,080 950,00 95,060,000
Holding Company
Sashwat Energy Privaie Limited, subsidiary of the 25,00,000 250.00 25,00,000
Holding Company

Arount

19.48

950.00

250.60

Iyefails of shares keld by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number % holding Number

Equity shares

Shapoerji Palionji and Company Private Limited, the 1,94,80,000 686.33% 1,94,80,000
Holding Company
Khurshied Paruvala, Divector 97,d45,293 33.17% 97,45,293

0% Comptlsorily convertible non-cumulative
preference shares

Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, the 95,006,000 651.19% 95,00,000
Holding Company

Khurshed Daruvala, Director 60,25,000 18.81% 60,25,000
Sashwal Energy Private Limited, subsidiary of the 23,006,000 HIG.00% 25,00,060

Holding Company

% holding

66.33%

33 7%

61.19%

8.81%
100.00%

Percentage change in promoters sharcholding during the year:

Promoter name No of shares Yotage of Total Ytage change during Type of share
shares the vear capifal

Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited 1,94,80,000 66% Mone

Khurshied Daruvala, Dircctor 72,000 0% None

Pallon 5. Miswry 72,608 0% None L

Khurshed Y. Daruvala 4745293 33% None ,1!?‘:!::’

Pervin Madan jointly with Khurshed Y. Daruvaln 1 %% Nome

Katnaz K. Daruvala jointly with Kharshed Y. Daravala 1 0% None

Zarine Y. Daruvala 20 0% None

Total 2,93,69,333

Sashwal Energy Private Limited 25,00.000 14% None Compulsorily

Shapoorji Pallonji And Company Private Limited 95,00,000 33% None Convertible

Riwgshed Y. Baravala 61,235,000 33% None Preference shaves

Total 1,80,25,000
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Equity share capital {confinued}

Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Number Amount Number Amount

Conmyilsorily convertible non-cumulative preference 1,00,00,800 10.00 1,00,00,000 10,00
10,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
Compuisorily convertible non-cumulative preference 5,01,00,600 50,10 5,01,00,000 50,10
shaves
50,100,600 equity shares of Rs 10 each
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference 1,50,04,600 15.00 1,50,00,000 15.00
shares
15,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 cach
Other equity
Particulars Noie 31 wiarch 2022 31 ddarch 2021
Securitics preminm account (i} 560.04 5360.04
Capital Redemption Reserve {ii} 50.00 50.00
General Reserve (iii} 13.39 13.3¢9
Retained earnings (iv) (614.34) (409.38}
Remeasurements of defined benefit Habidity ) 1.09 {0.69}

10.20 213.36
Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 560,04 560.04
Add : Addition duriag the year z -
Balance at end of the year 560.04 560.04
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 50.00 30.00
Add: Exchange difference on translation of loreign operations arisen during the year - -
Balunce at end of the year 50.60 50.00
General Reserve
Balanee as at the beginning and end of the yoar 13.39 13.39
Balanee at end of the year 13.39 13.39
Retained earnings
Halance as at the beginning and end of the year {409.38) {7014}
Add : Addinon during the year (204.95) {339.20)
Bakance at end of the year (614.34) {409.38)
Remeasarements of defined beaefit Habijity
Balance as al the beginning and end of the year (1.69) (1.41)
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re- 1.78 0,72
measurement of defined benefit obligation, net of 1ax
Balance at end of the year 1.09 (0.69)
Total 10.19 213.36
Notes:

Retained carmings

Retnined carnings are the profits that the Company has carned Hi date, less sy ransiurs o general soserve, dividends or other distributions paid to

sharcholders
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Perpetud Loan

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beghmning of the year - -
Addition/{ Repayments) during the year 958.21

Balance at the end of the year 958.21 -

Note;
The Company had acquired toans from ils Promoter and Promater Group Companies (“Lender™). The aggregate cutstanding balance of the loans as al
March 3%, 2022, are as under:

Party Name {Lender) Shapoorii Pallonii and Company Evangelos Ventures Private Limited

Loan Amount 277.64 634.63

Enterest Quistanding up to March 2021 45.94 Nii
323.58 634,63

Total Amount

The above loans were converted ima pemetual loans, effective April 01, 2021, vide e resolutions passed by the Board of Divectors of Evangelos
Ventres Private Limited and Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited, at their meetings held on March 31, 2021 and March 30, 2022,

respectively.

The Loans shall be perpetual in nature, with no maturity or a defined tenure. The provisions of the Loan Agreement state that the Borrower may, at its
discretion, repay a patt or all of the oulstanding ameunts (including any interest due thereon). The Lender shall not have any right whatsoever to cause
or require the Borrower to repay any parl or all of the amounts outstanding under the Arangement at any point in ime.

The interest on the outstanding amount wnder the Arrangement shall be pavable and at the end of each financtal year, catculated on the principal
amount of the outstanding amount under the Arrangement up 1o 1 £.50% per anaum, The payment of interest shall be subject to any surplus cash being
available with the Borrower and at the sole discretion of the Borrower, irrespective of the fact that any surpius cash is availabie with the Borrower.

Further to the resohutions passed by the Board of Direciars of the Company, at their meetings held en April 01, 2021 and dMarch 07, 2022, respectively,
ne interest shall acorue and be payabie for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022, on bath the perpetual loans.

The said interest shali be on a non-cumulative basis and therefore, the Borrowes al its sole discretion can pay the interest for preceding financial years
and/or that particular financial year.
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3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Long-term Borrowings
Term Loan
Secured
From Clhers * 750.80 -
From banks ** - 14,97
750.00 14.97

% [oan from Reliance Ventares Limited amounting to Rs. 750 crore carry an interest rate of 10.5% and are repayable at the expiry of 2
years from the draw down date

#% Term Loan from ICICI Bank Limited of Rs. 60 crore is repayable over a period of three years carvying a moratorium of one year
commencing rom the date of drawdown. The Tean has been fully availed is repayable in 8 guarterly instaments. The loan carvies interest
based on One year Marginal Cost of Lending Rate (MCLR) 7.30% plus Spread 3.10% (adjustable annuatly). The loan is secured by
exclusive charge on eonmercial office unit no. 1361-1312, 13th Floor along with 55 car parkings loczied in Universal Majestic, P L
Lokhande Marg, Chembur, Mumbai,

The Company has been charged penal interest an delay i repayment of principal (refer note 56).

Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity {refer note 41) 17.29 10.38
17.29 19.38

Current borrowings

Secured

Current maturitics of long term debt (refer note 23) 14.97 297

{a} Loans repayable on demand

- Cash credit loan from banks (refer note (1) below) 76.61 67.13

{(b) Other loans

- Working capital loan {rom banks {refer note (1)) below 138.12 115.15

- Buyers credit (refer note (b) below) 8.06 -
237776 211.99

Unsecured

Loan and deposit from related parties (refer note {¢), {d) and {c) below) 39950 851.47
39950 831.47

637.26 1,063.46
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31 March 2622 31 March 2821
Current borrowings (Continid)

Betails of the securities and the repayment terms:

Cash credittWorking capiial demand foan facility from Consortium i.e. Union Bank of India{lead bank),State Bank Of India, Yes Bank
Limited, Axis Bank Limited, DBS Bank India Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, IDB] Bank Limited, IDFC First Bank Limited, RBL Bank
Limited and Indusind Bank Limited is secured by a first charge by way ol hypothecation of all current assets, movable plant and machinery,
compuiers, vehicles and furniture and {ixiures with a carrying value of Rs. 25.28 crore {31 March 20210 Rs. 60.32 crote) as a collateral
security, term deposit of Rs. 13.50 crore, pledge of 100% paid up equily shares held in the share capital of Range Consuitants Private
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company and charge on commercial office premises of the company situated at Madiwala,Bangalore, ranking
pari passu. Cash credd facility from (he banks carries inlerest rate ranging from 8.00% (o 12.50% p.a., on monthly basis on actual amounl

utilised, and are repayable on demand.

In the previous year, the company had availed buyers credit faciiity from 1CICT Bank Ltd Union Bank ol India and IDBI Bank Limied
with interest ranging from 125 bps 1o 173 bps on 6 months Libor.

Unseeured loans and deposits from directors | their relatives and entitics over which directors and their relatives exercise conurol amounting
1o Rs 399.50 crore carry an interest rate of 11.5% p.a and are repayable on demand,

Loan from parent company Shapoorjt Pallonji & Co Pyt Lfd amounting to Rs 277.64 crove carrying an interest rate of 11.5% has been

converted to perpetual loan

Loans from Related parties include Rs. Nil as payable 1o Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy Limited {formerly Sterling and Wilson

Solar Limited} as at March 31, 2022 with Interest expense of Rs, 17.36 crore and average interest rate of 14.21%

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payables ( refer note 53 for ageing)
‘Towal outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 45.1) 23.34 113.25
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than niicro enterprises and small enterprises™ 1,825.31 1,i41.92
Acceptances *# 71.22 240.66
1,119.87 1,495.83

** Acceptances include armangements where operational suppliers of goods and services are initiaily paid by banks while the company
continues Lo recognise the liability 6il} sctibement with the banks which are normally within a period of 120 days amounting to Rs. 71.22

crove (31 March 2021 Ry, 240,66 crore)
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Other financial liabilities

1o related parties

Interest acerued and due:

- 10 holding company

- o divector

- other related parties

Other payables

To parties other than related parties
hrterest acerued and not due
- 10 others

Interest acerued and due

- to banks

- to others

-1 micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other payables

Employee benefits payable

Other current liabilities
Ta related parties
Advances [rom customers (refer note 46 (C))
Billing in advance of work completed
To parties ather than related parties
Employee payables
Statutory dues payable

- Tax deducted at source payable

- Provident fund payable

- Prefession {ax payable

- Emplovees State Insurance payable
Advances from customers {refer note 40 {C))
BRilling in advance of work completed

31 March 2822

31 March 2021

- 45.94
8.53 5.75
1.12 37
7.92 -

i6.31 -
0.21 (.79

- .05

7.55 6.44
35.00 31.87
36.25 53.37

1069.90 147.38
62.27 59.03

5.26 6.59

376 3.30
19.35 16.37

2.38 585

8,10 0.10

0.05 0.08

284.37 363.04
110.46 106.74
479.00 561,16
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29 Short-term provisions
Provision for employvee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 41)
Compensated absences
Other provisions
Provision (or Hiquidated damages or price discount
Provision far toss on onerous conracts

Provision for loss on oncrous conlracts:
It case of construction contracts, when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense innmediately in the stalement

of profit and joss.

31 March 2022

3t March 2021

0.92 1.07
24.88 31.21
4.54 16.060
13.95 3.35
44.28 53.63

Pravision for:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Closing balance

Opening balance 5.35 9.23
Add: during the year 13.95 5.35
Less: Utlised during the year (5.35) (9.23)

13.95 5.35

Provision liguidaied damages:

Liguidated damages or Price discounts are contractual obligations affecting the contract
revenue in case of (he construction contracts arising as a result of penaltics arising from
delays caused in the completion of a contract. For contracts delayed beyond the stpulated
conlracl completion periods, management has estimated the Hability that could arise on these

contracts

Provision for:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance 16.06 13.57
Add: during the year 1.72 2.43
Less:Adjustments {13.18) -
Closing balance 4.54 16.00
30 Current fax Habilities (net)

Provision Tor current tax {net of advance tax Rs. 19.52 crore [31 March 2021: Rs. 54,66 7.41 7.26
crore])
tineludes fringe benefit tax and wealth rax)

741 7.26
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31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 Revenuc from operations

Sale of services

lneome from works contract(s 1,940.81 2,048.36
Revenue from operation and maintenance services 189.96 22527
Other operating income
Sale of scrap 9.19 1.35
Fxporl incenlives 4.19 332
2,144.15 2.278.30
32 Other income
Interest income:
- deposits with banks 2.48 3.64
- {oan 1o subsidiaries and other related parties 153.73 199.07
- loan 0 others 0.72 2.40
- loan w employees 0.26 011
- income tax refund 4.26 11.70
- refention payable - 0.09
Write back of provision for bad and doubtful debts {net} 14.93 1.26
Dividend Income 2.00 -
Gain on forward cover cancellation - 0.03
Supplier balances written back 11.41 16.33
Foreign exchange gain (net) 10.33 6.03
Other miscellaneous income 15.27 974G
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments (net) .27 4.03
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss a/c - net change in fair value 6.90 -
Guarantes commission 1.20 3.05
Wrile back of provision for loss on onerous conlracis - .88
Gain on foreclosure of lease rental 0.47 -
224.258 23592
33 Cost of construction materials, stores and spare parts
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 17.93 24.8)
Add: Purchase during the year 1,248.19 1.436.26
Less : Inventory ol materials at the end of the year 3.92 1782
1,262.20 1,443.15
34 Change in inventory of stock-in-trade
Inventory of siock-in-trade at the beginning of the vear 3322 3513
Less: Inventory of stock-in-trade at the end of the year 30,47 3322
Decrease/ (increase) in inventory 275 2.01
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31 March 2022 31 March 2021

35 Direet project costs
Communication expenses 1.73 (.99
Stores and spare parls consumed 9.41 541
Commission expenses 4.62 2,30
[egal and professionai lees 15.63 18.01
Printing and stationery expenses 0.98 0.85
Insurance costs 18.16 15.60
Repairs and maintenance - others 13.36 14,07
Selling and marketing expenses 0.29 0.02
Traveling and conveyance expenses 8.24 9.28
Rent 16,13 17.34
Rates and taxes 5.26 4,43
Blectricity, power and [uel .77 285
Donation - 0.01
Bank charges 15.68 3113
Provision for loss on onerous contracts 8.60 -
Liguidated damages 1.04 7.006
Miszcellaneous expenses 43.33 47.37
165,65 176.72
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 179.38 202.80
Condribution to provident fund ard other funds 13.27 17.49
Staff welfare expenses 5.01 7.19
197.66 227.48
Sub-~contractor expenses 464.97 440.34
828.28 250,54
36 Employee benefifs expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 155.56 167.39
Conlribution to provident fund and other funds 9.77 13.41
Gratuity (refer note 413 4.04 4.82
Compensated absences 3.56 8.31
Stalf wellare expenses 5.18 9.3
180.03 202 .96
37 Finance costs
Inlerest expense
- on secured loans 3i.60 33.06
- on unsecured loans 45,93 130.55
- o dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.10 3.63
- on lease Labilines 3.54 1.07
- on others 9H 15.01
- on retention payable 0.21 bay
5.22 7.43

Cther borrowing costs

97.39 192,26
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38 Deprectation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

39 Other expenscs

Conmmunication expenses

Stores and spare parts consumed
Commission expenses

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery expenses
Insurance costs

Repairs and maintenance - others

Seliing and marketing expenses

Travehing and conveyance expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Electricity, power and fuel

Payment( to auditors (refer note (2) below)
Property, plant and equipment written off
Bank charges

Loss on sale of invesment

l.oss on sale of land

Bad debts written off

Interest accrued on receivables written off
Land development charges

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss a/c - net change in fair value
viiscellaneous expenses

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Allocated expenses

(a) Payment to audilors
Ag auditor
Statutory audil
Tax audil
Other services
Certification services

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

15.89 19.72
6.66 991
1.31 2.05

23.86 31.68
237 2.80
1.08 1.36
0.40 0.03

28.36 24.59
0.47 0.59
3.52 1.76
7.51 8.01
0.46 1.22
9.82 7.54
6.08 5.42
2.15 1.75
2.38 1.84
0.34 0.40
6.40 -
4.67 4.04

- 2.37
1.04 .
17.28 19.07
- 3867
175 -
- 218

13.35 9.7

- 5.26
(13.49) (20.33)
105,96 118.29

0.29 0.2§
0.03 0.03
0.02 0.01

- 0.08
0.34 0.40
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A}

B)

)

D)

Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The ongoing conlracts with customers are for
Industriat Engineering Procurement and Construction (EPC). The type of work in these contracts involve construction,
engineering, designing, supply of materials, devetopment of system, instaliation, project management, eperations and maintenance
ete. There is no impact on the Company's revenue on applying Ind A8 113 from the contracts with customers,

Disaggreagtion of revenue from contracts with castomers
Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical area and the type of conract of revenue

recognition. Disaggregated revenue with the Company's reportable segments 18 given in the note 44,

Reconciliation of contract assets and Habilities

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 262

Contraet assets”®

Unbilied receivables

Contract assets at the beginning of the year 817.85 1,135.02

Add: Revenue recognised during the year 2,136.77 2,273.63

Eess: Invoiced during the year (2,140.84) (2,557.74)

Contract assets as at end of the year 807.78 850.92

Contyract liabilities**

Advance from customers

Contract liabilities at the beginiing of the year 42207 526.38

Add: Addition during the year 165.65 20022

Less: Applied during the year {241.08) {304.53)
346.64 422.07

Contract Habilities as at end of the year

*The coniract assets primarily relate 10 the Company's rights to consideration for performance obligation satisfied but not billed at
the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. invoices are raised on
the customers based on the agreed contractual terms and are collected within 30-60 days from the date of invoicing.

##The contract liability primarily relates 10 the advances from customer towards on-goining EPC projects. Revenue is recognised
from the contract liability as and when such performance obligations are satisfied.

Reconciliation of revenue as per Ind AS 115

For the vear ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income from works contracts 1,942.53 2,050.79
Adjustment on account of:
Proviston for liquidated damages (1.72) {2.43)
Total 1,940.81 2,048.36
Revenue from operation and maintenance services 189.96 22527
Adfustment on account of:
Adjustment during the year - -

189.96 22527

Total
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Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Performancee obligation

The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The ongoing contracts with customers are for
Industrial Engineering Procurement and Construction (EPC). The type of work in these confracts involve construction,
engineering, designing, sapply of materials, development of system, installation, project management, operations and maintenance
efc,

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance obligations.
Contracts where the Company provides a significant integration service (o the customer by combining all the goods and services
are conciuded to have a single performance obligations. Contracts with no significant integration service, and where the customer
can henefit from cach unit on its own, are concluded to have multiple performance obligations. In such cases consideration is
aflocated to cach performance obligation, based on standalone selling prices. Where the Company enters into multiple contracis
with the same customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract is to be combined or not by evaluating factors such as
commercial objective of the contract, consideration negotiated with the customer and whether the individual contracts have single

performance obligations or not.

The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the performance creates or enhances an asset controtled by the customer.
For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based input methods. Revenue is recognised with respect to the stage of
compietion, which is assessed with reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for the work performed at the balance
sheet date relative 1o the estimated tofal contract costs.

Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company's input methods of
revenue recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our (ransferring control of the system to the customer. Significant
judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related to the amount of net contract revenues, including the impact of any
performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms of vartable consideration.

If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognizes the entire
estimated loss in the year/period the Joss becomes known. Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are included in
contract revenue to the extent that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

The Company recognises revenue {rom Operations and Maintenance services using the time-clapsed measure of progress i.e input
method on 4 straight line basis.

There is no revenue to be recognised in fisture related to performance obligations that are unsatistied (or partizlly satisfied) as at 31
March 2022.
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45,1 Contingent Jiabilities and commitmentys

Cantingent liabilities 31 March 2022 31 Marek 2021
{a) Claamns against the campany not acknowledged @ deits
(i} Dremands raised iy Sales tax authoritios 79.46 76,59
(1) Demands raised by Service 1ax authovities 592 6,17
() Bank guarantees ourstanding 76.39 7848
() Corporate puaraniees custanding 120.40 116,75

281.77 271,70
Capitad commitnzenls
Estimated amownt of contracts remaining to he execwied on capital account and aot provided for (net of advance of Rs. 342 croves [31 March 1.40 .52
2021 Ry, 3.3 cromes])

1410 0,51

(hber commitaenis
The Company has isseed ketters of undertakings to provade need bused fiwmciak suppont o as following whaelly owned subsidiaries:
) Srerling and Wilson International ¥ and 155 subsidiaries; awd
by Srerting and Wilson Sceuority Systems Private Lumnited.
o) Srerting and Witson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limned

41 Employce Benefits

Defined contribution plan:

Contributton o provident fund and other funds ngeregating to Rs. 23.04 crere (31 Mirch 20210 Rs. 30.9 crore) i recognised as an expense and included in 'Employee benefits expenses”

Defined benefit plunt and long-term emplayee benefits:
Creneral deseripion

Gratuify (Defined benelit pian)
fa sccordance with Wadian faw, the Company has o defined heneflt gratuity plan. Every employer in India who has completed five vears or more of service gets a granity on death or

resignation or retirement at 15 days salaey (Iast drvwa basic salary) for cach completed year of service subject to masimum of Rs. 0.2 crore.

Compensated absences (Short-term employee bencfits)
Short term feave wapes are payable to afl eligible cinployees at the rate of daily basic salary for each duy of sccumulsted leave on deatlt or on resignaton ar upon retirerasnd.
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41 Emplovee Beaefits (Continued)

Cheoige i the present valie af the defined benefit obligadon

31 March 2022 31 March 3021

§ Reconciliation of the present value of delined benefit obligation
Balance at the begianing of the vear 2146 2178
Benefits patd {5.66) (5.30)
Cuerent serviee cost 2.63 332
Past Service Cost- Vested Benefits - -
Net Interest cost 1.41 1,49
Liability wransferved in /£ acquisitions 1.71 0.10
Linbility transferred out (0.55) .20
Actuarial (gains} losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assunptions (0.05) -
- changex in financeal assumplions (0.85) (R
- experience adjushnents (6.8 {0.623
Balance at the end ofthe year 18.21 20.46 |
H Amauat recognised in the standalone statement of profic and loss vnder emplovee benefits expense
Current service cost 2,63 332
Net interest cost 141 149
4,04 4.42
11 Remensurement recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gaing / losses on obligation for the year (E.74) (0.72)
(1.74) (0.72)
1A% Mutarity prefile of defined beaefit obligation
Within next 12 momhs .92 1.07
Between | and S years 319 33
Above § years 4793 36.08
¥ Actwariad assumiplions:
Dscount rate 6.90% 6.90%
S00% 5.00%

Salary escalation
Service <& Service <3 : 14%

4%  Service>=5 1 1%
Service=5 :

Employee wirnover

%
Mottty 1ables Endian assared Indian assured
lives mertality lives mertality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Weighted average duration af the projected bewetit obiigation 15 years 18 years

Change in the present value of the defined benefit pbligation (Continned)

A3 Sensitivily Analysis
o respective assumptions sccurring at the end of the reponting pesfod, while helding

The sensitivity snndysis below have been determined based o
ail other assumptions coustant.

Defined Bonefis Pian

Defined Benefit Oblipation - Phscount sate # [ basis polints (1.9 2,30
Difined Benefit Obhligation - Discount rate - 100 basis poivs 3¢ 2.85
Definedd Benefi Obligation - Salary escalation rate + 100 basis points 1.93 2.48
BPafined Benelit Oblgation - Salary escalation rae - 100 basis poinrs {1.74) {218
Defined Benelt Oblgation - Employee Unover -+ HIE basis points 0.60 058
{69 .08

Prefised Benefit Obligation - Emplovee wrnover - HH basis poins

sis v been caleulated 10 show the movement in defined benselit ebligation i solation and assuming there are no olher changes in market conditions at

The aliove sensitivivy o
tre reporting date, In practice, poseralfly it does not aceur. When we elinge one variable, U afteets 1o others. In ealealaning the sensitivity, praject unit credit method at the end of]

the veporting periedd has been applicd,

Extimates of future salay inereases, considered in actwuint vitdaation, take account of inflation. sestority, promotion and other refevant factors. such as supply and demand in the employment
ket
Tl Company's bty on accoun of pratuily 18 not funded wd henee the disciosures relating 10 te phanned assets are not apphcable to the Compauny.

Compensated absences

wd to be paid in e se for the serviees recogaied as an espense during he year

Counpensated absences for emplovee benetits of Keo 330 cooe (3 March |
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{mreney : Fadian tupees in arores)

42

Disclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Sectian 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 20104 are as follows:

Bretaity ol imvestments made by the Company as en 3 Mareh 2822

Investments in eguity slaones

Name of the entity

Sterfing and Wilson haternational FZI
Range Consulimts Private Limited
Stevling and Wilson Seeurity Systems Private Limited

Stering aud Wilsen Nigeria Limited

Sterbing & Wilvon Middle East Blectro Mechanical L.L.C,

Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions AG
Sterhng and Wilson Middle Hast WoLL,
GCOPTY Lad

Sterling and Wiison Nigeria F28

Sterting & Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Pyt Lid
Sterfing and Wilson Eael X e-Mobility Pvt Lid
Mougin Interviews Private Limited

Crompron Gresves Consumwer Blectrical Limitedi
CG Power & Industrial Solution Limited#

Ruciit Soya Limited#

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Western India Sugar & Chomical Industries Limitedif
Misd fast Jadia Limied#

;‘.‘lnm:i:‘l Leothor Limneds

Oixklin Plarss amd Equipment's Limitedi

STV Limied (Sowh ndie Viscose Limited)
Sudiuti Hostery Limied

Arshuiya Limited

Asat ] Aprd 2024

1941
fiwt
4,04
5.0
0.80
.60
$.08
.04
0.3
423
4,08
0.0
040
4
.08
1.6
0.80
HE
{101
Al
0.91

e
TN

/)

Favestiment
during the vear

Redeemed?Seld during

the year

Other
Adjustments

0.07
017
(0.00)
{0.00)
(0.00)
(0.00)
(000}
(0.60)
(0.0
.00}
(0.65)
{004
{013
.01

Asat 3F Mareh 2022

28.70
{8
2.60
.00
0.40
.0
(.08
.40
0,46
ey

witiney Wi visenders are o folics

cenrrespoticdans valies aire lesy flan K, 700,000
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Notes Lo the standajone financial statements (Continueid}
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42 Disclosure purshant to section 186 of the Companies Ael, 2013 (Continued}

. Dotails of foans given by the Company are as fotlaws: {Costintied)

e Capitid
¢ on densid

[ rognityInent wanss

{Rate of ficrest

Nofe 3 Sieviing

Working Capita
Rosrapable on demand
YDA,

Papose of vtilization of foan given ta the eatities
Lo |\.‘Dﬂy‘llh‘lll wnns

i

hate of ntie

Mote 3 Sterling and Wikon Midslle East AWLL

Warking Capital
Repayable on demand

Prupose of wilization of foan yriven to the cnlitics
il e

P

g anl Wilson Co-Gen Selutinng Pt Ll

Wasking Cupital
Renayabic on demsnd

ey

Note tel Gilidey Lpd UN - [T —————
Hoaupose of whiliestion of fosn given to the entitics Warking Capital

v tepaymeat wHns Repayabic on denand

Jie o Tnaeiest 5, 5% J

Note 6 GCO Py L1d

Waekingt

Parpose of wilization of loan given o the enlitics
Repayable on demand

e reprayment teints

of fnterest

Note Tt Sterling & Wilson Nigerly Led —_

Working Capital
Repayabie on demand
k)

Furpose of wilization of loan piven to the enlitics
Loap repayment tenms

¢ af Inicrest

Note §; Stevling & Wilion Solar ¥YZCO

siv Capitod
Repayahte on demand

Parpase of utilization of foan piven 1o the entitics
l,G:\n rc]mymm: Ty

¢ of lnterest

i

. Details of guaranters given by the Compuny axe a§ follows:

Name of the enlity Pugpose A at 1 April Adjustment

2411

Sterling amd Wilsan Internaticnal FELE

Corporiaic Quasipeds Warking Capital 116.75
AR -

A Power S.rl,

i
Hak Guarntes Warking Capital THAY

A -

Storling & Wibson CO-Gen

rporate {ivarmices Aotking Capitd

(GGuarantees given
<luring the year
(inchuding
atjustment on
accaurt of
exchange
difference)

345

{1.79}

Guarastees expired
dluring the yesr
(including
adjustment on
account of exchange
giffereace)

(635.79)

Boe0

Asal
33 March 2022

12040
H67s

T6.3%
XIS




Sterfing and Wilson Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial stzstements fContinieed)
far Hie venr coded 31 Mareh 3622

(nrserey : fodin rupees incrores)

42 Disclosure pursuant 1o section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Contined}
Al Delsils of investments made by the Conpany as on 33 Maveh 2023 (Cunrizteid)
ivestuent in preference shares
Name ol the catily As sl T April 2021 investenl Redeened doring the Other As at 33 Mazrch 2022
e during the year adiustorents
vear
Steriing Gererators Prvale Limited RIET] - - {1.97) 48.49
3336 - (3.69) S0.46
©pra s ek menhars ane i lics
Lavestinent in debentures
Name ol the entity Asat ) Apeit 2021 Tnvestanent Redeesned doring the Other As at 3T March 2022
made during the yesr adjnstements
year
Westers Fadia Sugar & Chemical {ndustrics Linsted#? .40 - - - 0.00
inai) - - G40
[ ot reabicrs are 1 olscs
i correipnndieg valiey o feay thon Ry [OQFH
Investment in motual fund anits
Niimie af tie find A ut ] Apell M2 Tavestatend Redeomed during the Other As af 31 March 2022
miade during the year adjustnents
Voar
Hnion Long Bend Grawih Fund X} - - a0 .51
l [ a.02 {814
©gerovious yoar sitbices ere dm Maldicy
B. Details of leans given by the Company are 25 follows:
Name of the entity Av st T Aprit 2021 Loans Loans given Repaid dozing  Enterest Incosne for Foreigh exchange As i
Transferred ** daring the year the year the year (net of TDS)  duriog the year 31 March
{including 2022
foreigr exchanpe
agjustmgat)
Sterling snd Wilson International ¥ZE frefer note 1 belowyr 1.805.59 1,429.24) 658.78 - 7507 - 1,116.:9
A2 TR 227.922 - 174.9¢ - 1,805.59
prti . . N . . N . . - Ri - .2 . 545,
Sterkinge and Wilson Middle Yast Electromechanicsd LLC (SWMELLC) L4670 LEES u.00 i 1#
(refer note T bolow) -
Sterding and Wilsan Middle East WL frefer note 2 elow) 81.00 - - - 5.64 250 8814
PR oty - B2 (131} 8100
Stwibing and Wiison Co-Cien Solutions Pyt Ltd (efer note 4 beboav) 106,39 - A36E (15.55) - - 124.65
RANY 8036 {1960} .32 - 180,59
Franste] Utifities Lad, UK (refer note 3 below) 84949 - - - 275 (14} 4.55
736 - - - 70 065 894
GCO My L trefor nate 6 belowd 16.5Y - - - .94 0.26 12.03
(P8 - 162 - 0.86 .33 16.8%
Sterling & Wilson Nigetia Lud (refer note 7 below) 064 - . 0.04 o.02 0.71
[ - . G07 [OX hod
Sterbg & Witson Solar FALCO (refer note § belaw) $5.13 647} - - 1.89 1.36
shs . - £S5 167 147 4323

wairay pvar nmbers aee o folicy

L
* O poersant fes busin
ol My 407550 craves Bas been transferre,

ferng & H v PN TFOE ot Seer

transfer agreemenzi T A catcred henveen §
SETPCE o STELL

e pan Bhioc romed fumncal JLCENHAL

Trwill tie effective dade af 25th Feb

7l priziehls oot




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the vear onded 31 Sarch 2022

{Cubrency : Indion rapaes in orores)

13 Corperate soctal responsibility
The Company s onstitied & Corporate Sockd Responsibiity (C3RY Commitiee xs per Section 135 and schedule VIEof the Companics Act, 203 {ihe Act) readd with the Companies {Camporate Social

Responsibiliny Polivyd Rules 2014,
luie VI of e Act The utifisation is done by way of dircet contribation towsands various activities,

The funds are wtilived during the pertod on the getivitios which dre specitied in Se

The detsidbs set below are for the smount spent by the Campany.

farticulars A Murch 26322
A Grosy smaunt required 1o be spent by the Company during the veur -
[ cash Yei to he Totad

B, Amount spent during the year ended 31 darch 2022
paid in cash

rurticeiars 31 March 2021

A Gross amewnd reguired 1o be spent by the Company during the v -
B, Amownd spent during the year ended 31 March 202t In cash Yot ta be Totai
paid in cash

44 Segmend reporting

do

The Croup has
(1) Work Contrae
{313 Trading of goods;

(i1} Operation snd maintenance service,;
{iv) Leasing of property; and

() lacone from consubaney services.

ceount the mture of products and services provided and the differing risks and returss in terms w the information neqaized

The segments lave been identified and reported tuking fnte

by the Indizn Accounting Standard 108 {"AS 1087) on ‘Operating Scgnwents”

Sepment revenue and esults:

{1} Direct expenses are allocated to the respective
{1i) Conumen alfocable costs wre consistently alioeated amongst the STRBCALS O APPIOPrIats basis.

fiii} Unallocable income znd expenses includes general comorale income and expense dems which are not alloeated o any business sepment.

cmehit.

Al Basis for sepmentation

and Fire-fighting. In sccordance with fnd AS 108 “Operating Scgments”, the
we Company's Chief Operating Decision Ler {CODM) reviews
1, Electricals and Plumbing and Fire-fighting. As the Company’s

The Company is primarily cngaged in e business of Mechaeal, Electricals and Plumbing
Company bas determined its business sogments as Mochani cobicals and Plunbing and ¥
the internal massgement reports prepared based on un cgaion of finsncml informution for Mechimic
business activity falls within a sinple business segment viz, “Mechanival, Electricals and Plumbing and Fire-fighting’, the standalone Ind AS financial statements are reflective of

the information required by Ind AS 108 "Operating Seginents™

e-fghting”

B. Greographical information
The geographic information snalyses the Compaby’s revenues and non-canrent assels by the Company's country of domicife and other countries, In presenting geographic
nformation, seprmenl revenue has beer based on the selling locktion it rolation to sales to customers and segment assets are based on geographical location of assels.

a) Disaggregation of Revense inte grographical area :

Particuiuars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

fndis 1,876,560 LT
iniside Indiy 267,59 30149
204415 227R.30

b Revenue frem conlract with customers :

Particulars 3f March 2022 31 March 2021

Recopnised over thine 1.940.81 204836
Recopnised af i poist i Hnw 203.34 22994
2,444,158 227530

©} Nop-current assels (other than feancizl instruments and

PParticujurs 30 March 2822 31 Mareh 2020

Indis 234,33
Outside tndh 8.32
242.88

i) fnlsrmatiog about nujer customers

§wineh i e i 16040 of the Company’s total vovenue

Ravenue from one customer of the Company i s N O Maech 2824 1

“" s
N :\‘(‘\M;wu“ﬂf(/\ A
RN A A

vl
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

Tor the voar onded 37 Mareh 222

tseney @ Indlan upees s crores)

45

Eaenings per share

Particudars

Basic earnings por share

Numerator:

(loss) afior s ativibiable o cquity shareholders
Denonsinstor:

Calcolation of weiphted average aumber of equity shares
Nember of equity shares af the beginning of the year

Equity shares issued during the year

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weirhted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the voar (based on date of issuc of shares)
ighted average number of cquity shares sutstunding during the year (hased on date of issuc of shares) €

Adjusied we

Basic gurninges per share (EPSY (Rs) AlRB
Diluted carninps per share (DEPS) (Rs®
Face vadue por shage

T Current year DEPS 15 aatidiiutive

31 Marcl 2022

(204.95)

293,689,332
2,93,69,333
293093183
1ihdd.6%,333

(69.78)
(09.78)
10648

31 March 2021

(330,20

2,93,69,333
2,93,69,333
2.93.69,333
0,53,51,525

{11549
{115.49)
14,06

Dares to micro and small suppliers

Vinder the Micro, Smil and Medivm Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED] which came into faree from 2 Qctober 2606, certain disclosures are requited to be made reluting Lo
Mivre, Smult und Mediun enterprises. On the basis of the infornution and recerds available with the management, there are sutstanding dues to the Micro and Small enterprises as

defined s the Micra, Small and Medivm Enterprises Developiment Act, 2004 given below,

PParticulars

The amounts remaining unpaid 1o micre and small supplicrs as at the end of the year
~ Principal

- dterest

The amaunt of interost paid by the buyer as per the Micro Sl and Meditay Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2066 (MSMED Act, 2006}

The amounts of the payments made 10 mviero and small suppliers beyend the appomited day during vich accounting yeay

Thi mvount of interest due and payable for the peood of delay in making payiment {which have beeir pud but boyond the appomied day g
the year) but without adding the interest specilied wnder MBMED Act, 2006

Amount of interest accrued aimd remaining unpaid at the end of the accaunting yem

aining due and payable even in the sveceeding years, untif such dule when the interest dues as above are
0 Act, 2006

The amount of further ncrest rem
actually paid o the small enterprise for the pupose of disallowance 1 3 deduetible expendiure nnder the MSM

31 March 2022

2334
7.55

Nil

Nil

i

31 March 2021

11323
6.44

6.4

Bl
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46.1

Related party disclosures (Continued)

List of reluted partics

1)

2A)

2B)

Holding cempany

Shapoorii Pallonji and Company Private Limited

Subsidiaries, direct and indirect holding

Sterling and Wilson International FZE

Sierling and Wilson Cogen Solutions AG

Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solations Private Limited
Sterling and Wilson Middle Fast WLL

Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited

Sterling and Wilson Nigeria FZE

Range Consultants Private Limited

Sterling and Wilson Security Systems Private Limited
GCO Australia Pty Limited (formerly GCO Pty Limired)
Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical L.L.C
Enrich-SWPL IV

Sterling and Wilson-Jindun Coensortium

Sterling and Wilson Power Solutions LLC

Sterling and Wilson Power Systems Inc.

STC Power S.R.L

SPC-SWPL IV

Co. Stell SRL

P.T.C. S.a.s. di Barzanti Massimo

Sterting and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical (Bahrain) WLL.

Steriing and Wilson Middie East Sanitation, Electrical, Cooling and Conditioning Contracting LLC

Sterting and Wilson Cogen Seluttons LLC

Fetlow subsidiaries

Esterlina Solar Fngineer Private Limited
Eureka Forbes Limited

Fvangelos Ventures Private Limited
Forvol International Service Limited
Global Infra FZCO

Larsen & Toubre Limited Shapoorii Pallonji & Co Limiled Joint Venture

Relationship Properties Private Linuited
S. D, Corporation Private Limited
Sashwat Energy Private Limited
Shapoorji Pattonji Lanka (Pvi} Limited
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

Jor the vear ended 31 March 2022
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46.1

Related party disclosures (Continued)

List of related parties

2B)

3)

4)

5}

6)

Fellow subsidiaries (Continued)

Shapoorji Pallonji Mid East LLC

Shapoory: Pallong: Nigeria Limited

SP Fabricators Private Limited

Sterling and Wilson International Solar FZCO

Sterling and Wilson Renewable Fnergy Limited (formerly Sterling and Wilson Solar Limited)
Sterling Generators Private Limited (Jormerly Sterling and Wilson Powergen Private Limited)

Sterling Viking Power Private Limited

Joint Venture

Sterling and Wilson Enel X e-Mobility Private Limited

Key Management Persennel

Zaring Y, Daruvala, Director

Khursked Y. Daruvala, Director

Pallon Shapoor Mistry, Director

Ravi Ananthakrishnan, Director (upto January 22, 2022)
Parameshwar Hegde, Chief Financial Officer

K. P. Hartharan, Company Secretary

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Kainaz K. Daruvala
Delna K. Darwevala
Jehan K. Daruvala
Zenobia Farhad Unwalla
Farhad Homi Unwalla

Entities over which key managerial person or their relatives exercise control

Delsys Infotech Private Limited

Sterling and Wilson Energy Systems Private Limited
Sterling and Wilson Services Private Limited
Transtel Utthities Private Limited

Transtel Thilities Limited, UK
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)

fer the vear ended 31 Marel 2022

{Cwrreney - hudian rupecs i erores}

47
S

1)

Income faxes

Amount recognised in (he Séndidone statement of profitand toss

articulars

Curvent tay expessc !

Current veur

Changes in estimate related W prior years

Deferred tax :
Origination and reversat of temporary differences P&L

Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences - OCL

Tax expenses

31 March 2022 3t March 2021
1.87 .79
1.8';' (),7‘;
1 373
3[.][; 1].71;
3297 32.52

Treeme tax recogaised in other cosnpreliensive income

Particulars

T1ems thad will net be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeastiremaent gait on post employinent defined benefit plan

Tems that will be reclassified to profit or losy

fixchange differences in tanslating financial statements of foreign aperations

Before tax

31 March 2022
Tax (expense) henefit

Net of tax

1.78

Particuiars

Hems that will not be reclassified to profif or loss

Remeasurement (losses) on post empleyment defined benefit pian

Tems that wilt be reclassified to profit or foss

Exchange differences o anslating fimancial sttements of foreign operations

Before tax

0.72

31 March 2421
Tax {expense) benefit

Metof tax

072

Reconciliation of effective tax rute

Particulars

{Loss) hefore tax

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate {current year 34.944%)
Fax eltect of:

Expenses that are not deductable in determining taxable profit
Income which are exempt from lax

Change in deductible temporary differences

Deductible expenses

Ind-AS adpsstments

fems taxed at differential raies

Changes in estirnates related 1o prior years

Linr ed Deferred Tax Asset of curent year
Rew
Effect of s rates i foreign juscsdictions

thof Peferred Tax Asset of previous year

Tax (income) / expenses as per stazment of Prefit and Loss

31 March 2822 31 Maich 2021
(171.98) [306.08)
(60.10) (10717
09.01 6.62
(1.19) {G.31)

- .94
{3.27) (0,183
{0.43} (G.29}
{3.9%) (3.82}
5797 104.02
REMEL 3173
.87 .79
a2.07 12.52
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinned}

for the year ended 3 March 2022
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Income faxes (Continued)

The matjor components of deferred 1ax (abilities) £ assets arisivg on account of timing differences are as follows:

Particulary Balance a5 at Recognised Balance as at
Recognised/(Rever in OCi 31 March 2022
P Aprii 2028 sadd) in profit or during
{oss duriag 2021- 202122
Difference between written down value 7 capital work in (12.57) - (12.57)
progress of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and
Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for bad and deubtful debts, unbilled receivables 10.73 . 10.73
and toans and advances
Provision for loss on onerous contracts 32z - 3.22
Provision Tor liquidated damages (.26) - (0,26}
Employee benefitg 20,04 - 2404
Carry forward business losses 3Lie (311 -
tinabsorbed depreciation 1924 - 19.24
Fair veluation of investments 241 - (2.E3)
fetention receivable .23 - 0.23
et deferred iy asset 69.60 (3110 38.50
The mafor components of deferred tax (fabilities) / assets arising on aceount of timing differences are as follows:
Particnlars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised Balance as at
praofit or loss in OC1 31 March 2028
1 April 2024 during 2020-21 during
2028-21

Difference between written down vatue / capital work in {(12.57) (12.57)
progress of fixed assews as per the books of accounts and
come Tax Act, 1961
Provision for bad and doubtfid debts, unbilled receivables 10,73 - 16.73
and loans and advancey
Provision jor foss on onerous contracts 3,23 B 332
Pravision jor hquidated damapes (D.26) - (0.26}
FEmployee benelits 2004 - 20.04
Carry forward business losses 6283 (31.73) 3010
Unabsorbed depreciation 19.24 - 19.24
Fair valuation of invesiments (2.13) - (2.13)
Retention seceivibie 0.23 - 0.23
Net deferred tax asset 101.34 (31.73) 069,60
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial stadements (Continued)

far the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

{Currency @ Indian rupees in crores)
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income taxes fContinned}

Unrecounised deferred tax assets/(fabilitics)

Bartewlars Amoung
Difference between written down vilue / capital work in 1461
progress of fixed assets as per the beoks of accounts and

Icome Tax Act, 1961

Proviston {or bad and doubtiul debts, unbilled receivables (3.22}
and loans and advances

Provision far loss on encrovs contracts 3.40
Provision for Houidated damages 0,74
Emplovee benefits 215
Loan impairment 13.98
Carry forward business losses 33.44
Unabsorbed depreciation 3.64
Fair valuation of investments {1.36}
Retention receivable & payable {045}
Security deposits e, .04
T otal e 57.97

Since the company has incarred tosses tn tie previous years,the management has decided not o consider the deferced tax assers/(labilitics) arising in the current year.

The Company offsets tax assets and labilities if and ondy i it has a legalty enforceable right 1o sat off cutrent ax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax suthority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and labilities and recoverability of deferred income tax
assets, The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income and the period over which deferred income tax assels wili be recovered.

‘The major comporents of deferresd tax (liabilities) / assets arising on aceount of timing differcnces are us follows:

Deferved tas assels for the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that # i3 probable that futwre taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be wilised. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future twxable profit may not be available. Therefore, the Company feoognises a
deferred 1ax asset only to the extent that it has sulficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
ssels - unrecounised o recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised’ reduced 10 the

against whicl such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax a
extent that it is probable/ ne langer probable respectively that he retated tax benefit will be realised.

Tax lusses carried forward

Particulars Assessment Yeay 31 March 2022 Expiry date
Eupire 2018-19 3332 223-26
2020-21 156.58 2027-28
2021-22 272.96 20:28-29
462,83
Newor expire 2018-19 12.04
2020-21 36063
202122 24.52




Sterling and Wilson Private Linvited

Nutes to the standalone Brnancinl statements (Contined)

Foor ihne swire eandod 31 Mearch 2022

5 and Gog vahis o els in e £t vaine Bieracchy, 12 dees nat iwlude Rl vidue mfoomaon G fin fassets an

i e

Fying skt Talr value
VYL Fy 1ol Anzartised ozt Total Level 1 - Cuoted Lever2- Leveld- Folak
price in active Sipnificant Signbficant
markets obscrvable inputs  unobservable
IFinaacind assets
[avestments in subsidiaries & partersiip iom - . 1292 1272 - -
Bavesunents i joint venuse 4217 - . 4.27
fvesttents in preferesee fstruments 48 49 4349 . - 45,49 4549
Ivestpents iy equily nsinanenis 2974 .79 46 979
fnvestment in mitus! fimds 432 - 0.32 G.Aa2 - - 8.3z
Castand cash equvalents ARz 48.72 - - - -
Tank badances other than cash and cash cquivalents 40.72 q9.72 - - - -
Laans 285023 285074 . - - -
Thade seecivables 12ag.61 1,248.61 . - - -
’ bles 12462 221.02 - - - -
RO7TTR BOLYH - - . -
- o izu3 LR . - -
5256 - 5,268, 76 534362 0.78 - 7181 7860
Finanvial Bubilltiey
1w burrowin TR0 - -
iEL Tonn betews . 63726 637.26 - . -
Trade payables . - 111987 1,119.87 B - - -
P.ease Babilities - . 546 246 - - . -
{nher current finatcial Tiabilities - IV 1G990 - - -
- - 263250 262258 - - - -
Fair value
3 Mareh X021 FYTOCTE Amartived Cost Tetal Eeved 1 - Queted Level 2 - Level 3- Total
Fanzan EEEREH]
estments i subsidiaries and associate - - 1232 1272 - - -
stinsents in preference msyments 046 - S0.46 - - SLidh 4
e HERESTH 020 - - 2019 .38 ~ 1959 10,29
nvestiments i debt instments . - Do X - - E -
Investment in witual finds .30 . - .30 030 - 030
Cash and cash equivalents - 6434 64.34 - -
fiank balances sther than ik and cash cguivatens - - A6.74 46.78 - - - -
Lonns . . 231901 7,119.01 - . . -
Trade reeetvibles - 1,328,338 1,325.35 - . - -
(rher receivables - - 22444 22494 - - .
Tnterest acerued o receivables - - - - - -
LUnbilled receivables - R50.92 #50.92 -
Tank Deposits - - 5.69 5409 - - . -
71.05 - 4,649.25 4,720.30 0.6 = 70.37 2505
Financtd habiiities
e et bosiawings - §407 1497
etenn horrowings - - R 1,063.44 - -
fade payables DS 149533 . .
v bbb -
Onfaer corrent Prasciad abildies 241 E - - -
- £47.27 —
’ - - 1M - - : o




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Notes (o the standalone finnucind statements (Continned}

for thier yoche ended 31 Adurch 2022

arrency ark LS 1 Taies)

481 Fh

{b Measurenent of fair valuey
Valuution teelmigoes and sinilicant unolservable inpuis

¢ Tofivwany tuble shows

se valwion rechriques saed in

mprats s

Financial instraments measured st fair value

inekal instraments - Faiv vahses and visk management (Consinued)

o
o

al instrunents measused @ fne vakee in thy

statement of francial position as well as the significant

rsetvishie

Type

15 - iy maatnad fends

Valuation wehntque

The fair vahies of investments in mutsal fund units & based
o the ret
these mutial fund unis in the published statements as at
HE o Sheet date, NAV represents the price at which the
fssuer will issue furtier wnits of mutual fand and the price
at which ssuers will redeem such unats from the investers,

The wihuation model

cash fow app
o gnesent value of expected feceints,
rwd discoum ree

sntedd

vob value £ NAYY) as stated by the wmsuers of

Sipnillesnt
unohservable inputs

Not applicable

Average vaat of boraws

inter-relaiionship between
significant vnobservalile inpruts
and fair value measurement

Notappheaiie

red i whale or

el ased

supporied by prices fiom observithle
Current makey dras HEEEN
instrument gor sre they based oo
available market data

Translees between Levels Tand 2

There have bren ne transfors hetween I ovel | and Level 2 during the veporting periods

Level 3 fxdr vatues

The sigmbeant unchserva

Deseription of sigaificas unobservable inputs o valuaton

I fnputs wsed in the Gt vatue rcasurement of the £1 vadue hicratehy sogelber with 3 quastititive seusitivity anadysis a5 st 31 Mareh 2022 and 3 March 2021 are as showan below:

Type
Inveghments i u
i

nstriments aecounted for as f2ir vatue

i prol

Vatvatlen technigue
Prscounted vasl fow
waluatian el con
value of expected reces
2 nisk adjusted discount yate,

st

Significant
roich: The Average cost of borrowgs
the present
disvoutted

it

Discounting rate
3% Marck 2022: 12.85%
31 March 2027 2.85%

Sensitivity of the Inpul to
1% {March 2022 G fucrease
{decrease) would fesult fn (decrease} /)
increase in fai valug by (Hs .83 crore|
e G.8G crore (March 20Z1: {Rs
G ETerore) f Ry 0.9 crome)

lovestments in unguoted equily instnuments accounted for at
vadue tbrough profit or loss

34 Masch 2023 Curemt Transaction 3§ March 2075
Method (UTH)
3

Investment Method

Curzenl Trinsaction
Method {CTM)
31 Maich 2021:Price of Recent
Tavestment Method

Price of Recent

31 March 2022: Not Apphicabie
31 March 2021 Not Applicabe

The valuation has been done on the,
basis of the "Cument Transaclion
Methed” based on the valuation repornt
issued in August 2021 for 3st Marchl
2021,
This methad is used in the event there)
is a anvestinent that is made in the|
Cenmpany. There has been a wansfer of
4,997 shares on 16th Qctober 2818
and  the valuation o which  ssch
sction biss taken place pravides a
Dasts for ami :

18

2 MLTeT
Fan,

o YiLe
N \\}
Lf L anal
& oy
2, S,'W;"'”- Ry 4{‘
L8 g S

oid



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nules to the stendslone (inancial statements (Continiied)
M2

et yvarr eneded 31 Marck

L0 enmey s Bdian papaes e ciares)

¢ values and risk manapement {Condinied)

$8.8 Financial instromends -
£y Measurement of fair values (Contined)

Reconeitiation of Level 3 Fair Yaolue Measuroments:

Equity Prefered

nslyunienty struments
Halanee a5 al 31 March 2036 20,33 $3.84
Add: Parchased during the yeu . -
T.esssabe dunng the year {0.90y -
Less: Change in value of isvestment in preferenee sh anity shittes measured at FVIPL 116 {2.35)
Balance as wl 31 March 2028 20.59 5036
Add: Purchased duting the you .88 -
Lessmide duting the year . -
Add: Change in value oF investient in preference shares wnd equity shares enessured at FVEPL B0 {5.97)
Balanee as a1 31 Mareh 2022 3437 18.49

[{8] Financkal risk management

 fton financisd astraments

The Company hag exposure 1o the foblpwing risks wiv
i Crodld visk |

3} Ligpaniadity sk | anid

i} Misket tisk

Ttixk munagement framework
whment and oversight of the Company’s tisk nuteagement famewoss The Boaed of difeeters i responnble (o develop

Bty fiar e e

F of ditectors has averall sesponsi

sageinent

att adherenee 1o lir

andd anatyer the risks fced by the Company, to setappapriate risk Hmits anad conuels and w momtar 1
i ke Compary’s activities, The Company, thiough its training snd manageny

‘The Compaty’s fisk managerent policies are estatibabed 1 idenuf)
systemy are reviewed regudarly to refteet changes i market condit
catitred eavirenment i which all employees understand their wies wid sbkigations.

The Board of ditectors oversees how management moniots complinn ¢ with the Company’s 1isk management policies and procedures, and seviews th
the Company. The Board of ditectors are assisted it its aversight roke by msernat i, Imernat audit undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk nianagement

i3oard of directors.

e WA E S
f/\g}' ;

g Tt

1 soniteling e Company’s

its. Risk management pelicies and
ont standards and procedures, ams o maintain a disciplined and constructive

he tdeguacy of the risk masagement Fameword in relation o the ks faged by
controls and progedures, the resubts of which are reported to the
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022
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Financial instraments — Fair values and risk management {Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty (o & financial instrument fails Lo meet its
contractual obligations, and ariscs principally from the Company’s receivabies from customers and investment in debt securities. The
carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum oredit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach customer. The demographics of
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and ceuntry in which the cuslomer operates, atso has an influence on credit risk
assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitering  the
creditworthiness of customess to which the Company grants eredit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an
allowsnces for doubtful debis and Gapairments that represents its estimates of incusred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

Total trade receivabic as on 31 March 2022 is Rs. 1,248.61 crore (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,325.35 crore) and unhilled receivable as on 31
March 2022 is Rs, 807.78 crore (31 March 2021 Rs. §50.92 crore),

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. Single largest customer has total exposure in
receivables 6.67% (31 March 2021: 6.67%).

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables to
mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision ab cach reporling date wherever ouisianding is for longer period
and involves higher risk.

The movement in the provision for impainment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Ralance as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Trade tnbilled Loans Total
receivables receivables

Balance as at 31 March 2020 25.45 - 0.60 26.05

Proviston recognised / (reversed) (nef) (1.26) - - {1.26)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 24.19 - 0.60 24,79

Provision recognised / (reversed) (net) (14.93) - - {14.93)

9.26 - .60 9.86

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institations of Rs. 48.72 crore and Rs. 64.34 crore
as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively. The credit worthiness of the such bank and firancial institutions is evaluated by

management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good,

Other bank balances

The Company held other bank balances of Rs. 49.72 crore and Rs, 46.78 crore as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
respectively with hank with good eredit rating,

Investment in muual funds

Investments primarily include investment by units of mutual funds. These mutual funds and counterpartics have low credit risk.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Curreney : Indian rupees in crores)

48.1

(c)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continied)

Credit risk (Continned)

Derivatives
The derivatives are generally entered with credit worthry banks and finaneial institutions counter partics. The credit worthiness of such
banks and financial institutions is cvaluated by the management on an ongoing basis is considered 10 be good.In current year the

company has nol entered into any desivative contracts.

Guarantees

The Company's policy is fo provide the financial guarantecs only for its subsidiarics and joint ventures, As a1 31 March 2022 and 3]
March 2021, the Company has issued the puarantecs (o certain banks on behalf of its subsidiaries and joint ventures in respect of
eredit facilitics availed by the subsidiaries and joint ventures. The Company has given guarantces 0 the customers of subsidiaries in
respect of mobilisation advanee received by the subsidiaries and for the performance of the contract obligation.

Security deposits given to lessors

The Company has given sccurity deposit to lessors for premises leased by the Company as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, The
Compary monitors the credit worthiness of such lessors where the amount of security depoesit is material.

Loans, investments in companies

The Company does not perceive any eredit risk pertaining fo Ioans provided or investmenis.

Other than the frade receivables, unbilied receivables and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past

due but not impaired.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

Jor the vear ended 31T March 2022

(Currency © Indian rupees in crores)

4%.1 Financial ingtruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued}
(¢} Financial risk management (Continned)

ii Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able fo meet its Nnancial obfigations as they become due. The Company
manages ils liquidity risk by ensuring, as [ar as possible, that it will ahways have sulficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under boih normat and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. The Company

has access to funds from debt market through loans from banks, financial instituiions and other debt instraments.

As at 31 Mareh 2022, the Company had working capital demand loan of Rs. 138.12 crore, cash credit loan of Rs. 76.71 crore and
loan {rom related parties of Rs. 399.50 crore including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 48.72 crore and other bank balances of Rs.

4972 crove.

As al 31 March 2021, the Company had working capital demand loan of Rs. 11515 crore, cash credit loan of Re. 67.13 crore and
toar: from related parties of Rs. 851.47 crose including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 64.34 crore and other bank balances of Rs.

46,78 crore

Exposure to lquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilitics into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for

derivative and non dertvative {inancial liabilities:

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2022 Carrying Total I year or 1-2 years 2-5 years
amount less

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Term loan {rom banks 764.97 T64.97 14,97 75000 -

Cash credit loans from banks 76.61 76.61 760.01 - -

Working capital demand foan 138.12 138.12 138.12 - -

Other short-term borrowings 399,50 399,50 399.50 - .

Trade payables 1,119.87 1,119.87 1,119.87 - -

Interest accrued and due 6.65 6.65 0.03 - -

Lease liabilities 30.21 38.70 8.57 8.57 19.46

Other current Tinancial Habilities - -

More than 5
years

Contractual cash {tows

31 March 2021 Carrying Total 1 year or less  I-2 years 2-5 years
amount

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Term loan from banks 44.68 44,68 2971 14.97 -

Cash credit foans from banks 67.13 67.13 6713 - -

Waorking capifal demand loan 115,18 11315 115,15 - -

Other short-term borrowings 831.47 851.47 851.47 - -

Trade payables 1,495.83 1.495.83 1,495.83

lnterest acerued and due 38.64 38.04 38,64 - -

|ease Habifies 5.68 5.68 2.76 0.78 1.29

Other current financial habilities 85.24 85.24 85.24 - -

More than 5
years

The gross inflows/(ouiflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contraclual undiscounied cash Hows relating to non-derivative

financial labilities held for risk management purpeses and which are not usuatly closed out before contractual matunty.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continted)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure carnings, fair valoes or futare cash flows that may resudt from adverse changes in market rales and prices (such ag

interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive mstruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and
prices. Market visk is atiributable to alt market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreigh currency receivables and payables and afl short term and long-
term debl The Company is exposed 1o market visk primarily velated (o foreign exchange vate risk, interest rate risk and the market vaiue of its investments.
Thus, the Company’s exposure (o market risk is a function of investing and borrowmg activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign

correncies.

Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to curreney risk on account of #ts operating and Mnancing activities. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

Exposure {o currency risk

Fhe currency prolife of financial asscts and financial Gabilities as at 31 Mareh 2022 and 31 March 2021 arc as below:

|
|

31 March 2022

UsD EUR GBP AED Peso ZAR Others *
IFinancial assets
{Trade receivabics 138.12 - - - -
iCash and Cash Equivalents - - - - -
{Loan to subsidiarics and others 136.35 - 3.81 12.03
Recoverable expenses 167.98 - 17,71 - -
{Exposure to foreign currency assels 442.43 - 21.52 - 12,03
[inancial Tiabilities
Trade payables and other payable 40.36 3.44 1.08 - 0,06
Exposure fo foreign currency 40.36 344 1.08 .06
(Net Exposure 40207 (3.44) 19.84 - 11.97
*others include AU
31 March 2021
- Uusn EUR oBRP AED Peso ZAR Others *
Financial assets
Trade receivables 169.89 - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 017 0.01 0.02 - .00
Loan to subsidiaries and others 124,87 - 8.94 10,90
i Recoverable expenses 162,15 - 15.00 - -
Exposure {o foreign currency assets 457.09 0.01 26.97 - 10,90
Financial Habilities
Trade payabies and other payable 1917 4.08 193 - 0.06
Exposure fto  fereign  currency 16.17 4.68 .95 - (.06
Net Exposure 437.92 {4.68) 25.01 - 10,84

*athery include CHE AU
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Financial instraments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Financial visk management (Continried)

Market visk (Continuied)

Currency Risk (Contintited}

Sensitivity analysis

A 5% strengthening / weakening of the vespective foreign currencies with respect to functional corrency of Company would result in increase o decrease

in profil or loss and equity as shown in table below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores

any impact of farecast sales and purchases. The Tollowing analysis has been worked ouf hased on the exposures as of the date of statements of financial

position.
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit or loss Profit or loss
Effect in ENR million Strengthening Weakening Strenpthening Woenkening
USD 28,10 (20,183 2190 {21.9M
EUR 0.17) 0.17 {0.23) 0.23
GBP 3.99 (0.99) 1.25 (1.25)

0.60 (0.60) 0.54 ((.54)

Others *

*others include CHF, AUD
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48 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
() Financial risk management (Continned)

i Market visk (Continued}

) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cosh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest tates. The Company’s exposure 1o markel risk for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from financial
instiutions. Interest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value or fusure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in mterest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from

For details of the Company’s short-term Ipang and bomowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note 17, Note 22, Note 24 and Note
26 of these standalone Tnd AS financial statements.

Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asseis 2,899 .24 1,892.95

Financial liabilities {1,149.50) (851.47)
1,749.74 104148

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - -

Financial liabtlities (237.76) (226.96)
{237.710) (226.90)

Interest rate sensifivity - fixed rate instruments

The Company's fixed rate borrowings and fived rate bank deposis are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not subject fo interest
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the fiture cash flow will fluctuate because of a change in market

interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate

Prafit or loss Equify, net of tax
INR 100 bp increase H0 bp decrease 10 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March 2622
Yariable-rate instruments (2.38) 2.38 (1.55) 1.58
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {2.38) 2.38 (1.55) 1.55
Profit or loss Fquity, nef of tax
INR 100 by increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 108 bp decrease
31 March 2621
Variable-rate instruments (2.27) 2.27 (1.48) 148
Cash flow sensitivity (nety (2.27) 2.27 (1.48) 1.48

The risk estimates provided assume a change of 100 basts points interest rage for the interest rate benchmark as applicable o the borrowings
summarised above. This calculation also assumes that the change oceurs al the balance sheet date and has been caleulated based on risk
exposures oulstanding as at that date, The period end balanees are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the

puriud,
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48  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

{t} Capital Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so a8 W maintain investor, creditor and market cenfidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Managament monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

The Company monitars capital using a rato of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For 1his purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
hatrowings, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and oblipations under finance Jeases, less cash and cash equivalents,

Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as fotlows:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-Current Borrowings 750.60 14.97
Current Borrowings 637.26 1,063,406
Grass debt 1,387.26 1,078.43
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 48.72 64.34
Adjusted net debt 1,338.54 1,014.09
Fotal equity 2,800.27 2,045.22
Adjusted net debt fo adjusted equity ratio 0.48 0.50
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Disciosure of Ratios

Ratio

Numerator

Densominafes

March 31,
2022

March 31,
2021

o,
n

Variation

freason for variation

Current Ratio (in Hmes)

Current Assets

Current Liabilitics

317

221

4%

On account of ncrease in loan
o subsidinries, converston of)
loan from holding company 10
perpetual loan, inlerest waiver
on losn taken form  related
parties and decrease in vendor

payables

Deb-Eauity Ratio

Total Pebt

Total Equity (Including
Non Controlling Interest)

0.5¢

0.53

6%

Tebt Service Coverage
Ratia

Farnimg for Debt Service

Debt service

0.01)

(0.08)

-88%

of

Hicrease

On  account decrease  in

fogsed  and in loan

FEPAYINCIHS

Return on Equity Ratio (in

B4}

Wet Profits after taxes - Preference
Dividend

Average Sharcholder’s

Eguity

-8.54%%

A2%

G of rveduction in

losses

account

due  to  decrease in

overhead expenses and finance

cost

Trade Receivables turnover
ratio

Revenue from operations

Average Debtors

1.67

Trade paysbles tumover
ratio (in times)

Expenses

Average Trade Payables

0.97

Net capital turmover ratio

Revenuy from operations

Working Capital

0.56

0.83

On account of increase in loan
o snbsidiaries, conversion ol
loan from holding company to
perpetuat loan, interest waiver
on lean aken form  related
parties and decrease in vendor

payables

Net profit ratio

Net Profin afler fax

Net Sales

-8.02%

-13.46%

-40%

On account of decrease in
overhead expenses and finance

Cost

Return on Capital employed

{in %)

Farning before interest and taxes

Capital Emploeyed

-0.83%

-3.66%

1%

Decrease  in losses  before

Interest and Taxes and increase:

in non-current borrowings

Return on Invesunent (in
)

hcome generated from iovested

funds

Average invested fands in
nvestments

69.00%

76.00%

“7%!
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49 A Details of significant investments in subsidiaries, jpint ventures and partership firm

—
" . . Satape Direct holding
Country of incorporation Asat 2022 Asar202]
1) Subsicdiaries
Sterling and Wilson International FZE Dubai United Arvab Bmirates 100% 160%
Steriing und Witson Middle East WLL Qatar 49% 49%
Range Consultants Private Limited India 108% 100%
Sterhing and Wilson Securily Systens Private Limited India 100% 100%
Sterling and Wilson Nigeria Limited Nigeria 100% 1009
Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Sclutions AG Switzerland 100% 100%
GCO Austratia PTY 1L Australia 6% 6%
Sterhing & Witson Nigeria FLL Nigert L% 100%
Stertng & Witson Co-Gen Sohtions Pyt L India 1060% 100%
Sterling & Wilson Middie East Fleetro Mechanical LLA Pubai LUndted Arab Enurates |00 0%
b) Joini Veaiures
Seerling and Wilson Enel X e-Mobiiity Pyt L huldia it %
¢} Partnership firm
Enrichi-SWPL 3V india 4499 49%
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(i

{iv)

{v)

{vi}

(vi{)

Subsequent Event

The Company has made an application for 1 Seheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, on August
30, 2022, for the reduction of share capiial and reorganization of reserves of Sterling and Wilson Private Limited {being the Transferee Company), under
the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner as set out in Part II of this Scheme, in accordance with Section 66 of the Campanies Act, 2013, and other
applicable provisions and rules made thercunder.

The purported Scheme also provides {or merger of Sterling and Wilsen Middle Bast Electromechanical LLC, Whotly Owned Subsidiary Company (being
the Transferor Company), a foreign Limited Liability Company incorporated in the Emiraie of Dubai under Federal Law Ne. § of 1984, mio The
Transferee Company in the manner as set out in Part 11 of this Scheme and in accordance 1o the provisions of Section 234 read with Section 230 to 232 of
the Companics Act, 2613 and other applicable provisions of the Companics Acl, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the Transferce Company and

provisions as may be applicable to Transferor Company for mergers or arrangements in United Arab Emirates (“UAE").

Further, the Board of Direstors of the Company has decided 1o write off the accumulated losses in the Profit & Loss Account appearing as on the
Appointed Date, being March 31, 2022, against the reduction in the paid up Compulsorily Convertilde Preference Shares ("CCPS™) and the face value of
equity shares of the Transferce Company in accordance with section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the National Company Law Tribunal
{Provedure for Reduction of Share Capital of Company} Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions.,

The Scheme broadly seeks to undestake the following:

Reerganization of reserves and reduction of share capital of The Transferee Company in the manner set out in this Scheme; whereby:

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,80,25,000 number of CCPS (having face value of INR 1,000 each) of the Company shal stand extinguished and
cancelled through capital reduction propostionate to percentage of such CCPS held by the holders of the CCPS as on the Effective Date, {or a consideration

of INR 1168 per cquity share (as determined on a fully diluted basis}), amounting 0 2 total payout of INR 87,71,68,000.

With effect from the Appointed Date, 1,46,84,667 number of Fquity Shares (having face value of INR 10 each} of the Company (50% of the Equity
Shares of the Company as on 28 February 2022) shall stand extingnished and cancelled through capital reduction proportionale to percentage of such
Equity Shares held by the holders of the Equity Shares as on the Bfective Date, for a consideration of INR 11.68 per equity share, amounting to 4 total
payout of INR 17.15 crores.,

Amalgamation and vesting of business of Transferor Company with and into Transferce Comparty, being 100% holding company of the Transfcror
Company.

Other Statutory Information

The Commpany does net have any Benami propesty, where any proceeding has been initisted or pending against the Company for hoiding any Benami
property.

The Company docs not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which ig yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The Company has nof traded or invested m Cryplo cusrency o Virual Currency during the fimancial year.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ics), including foreipn entities {Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shali:

(2} directly or mdirectly kend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uumate
Benefictaries) or

{h) provide any guaraniee, security of the Hke on behall of the Uliimate Beneficiaries.

The company is not declared a witlful defaulier by any bank or financial fnstitution or other lender.

The Company his nel entered jito any such ransaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.
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Trade Receivables Ageing as on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Not due 1.ess than| 6 months § 1-2 years{ 2-3 years More Total
6 months | 1 year than 3
years
Eindisputed trade receivables
considered good which have significant increase in credit risk 176.31 535.13 111,89 219.67 120.12 94.74] 1,257.87
credit impaired - - - - - - {9.26)
Disputed trade reecivables
considered good which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - .
credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 176.31 535.13 111.89 219.67 120,12 94.74] 124861
Trade Receivables Ageing as on March 31,2021
Outstanding for following perieds from the date of transaction
Not due Less than! 6 months{ 1.2 ycaré -3 years!  More Total
6 months § 1 year than 3
Yerrs
Uindisputed trade receivables
considered good which have significant increase in credit risk 247.83 561.23 14923 222.23 50.77 118.25; 1.349.54
credit impaired - - - - - - (24.19)
Disputed trade receivables
considered good which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 247.83 561.23 149.23 222.23 50.77 118.25) 1,325.35
Trade Payables Ageing as on March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Nof due Less than| 1-2 years | 2-3 years| 2-3 years| More Totad
I year than 3
years
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and smail enterprises 8.34 11.43 .57 .95 - 0.06 23.34
Others 778.18 169.43 417 48.28 - 58941 1,096.34
Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - .
Others - - - - - - -
Total 786.52 180.86 4427 3 4923 - 5900 1,119.88

Trade Payables Ageing as on March 31,2021

Outstanding for follewing periods from the date of transaction

Not due Less than| 12 years | 2-3 years| 2-3 years More Total
1 year than 3
vears
Undisputed trade payables )
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 560,58 48.19 4.38 .09 0.61 113.28
Others 932,42 22235 5798 5135 - 7848 138258
Disputed trade payables
Micra enterpriscs and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - -
Fotal 993.04 270.54 102.36 5144 - 7849 | 1,495,83
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54 The Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2022
L5 Lixceptional items are those which are considered for separate disclosure in the financial stalements considering Lheir size nature or incidence. llems

included in the statement of profit and loss are loan to subsidiarics Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited Rs 25 erore (31 Murch 2021 Rs
Nil) and Sterling and Wilsen Middie East WL1L Rs 15 crore (31 March 2021 Rs Nil) are impaired,

56 Delay in repayment of principal of ferm loan:

Name of lender Nature of | Amount | Whether | No.of | Amount
borrowing | not paid | principal days
including ondue |orinterest| delay or
debt date unpaid
securities }
1CIC] bank Term loan 7.50 |Principal 30 0.01
iCIC] bank Term loan 7.50 |Principal 3l 0.01
1CICT hank Term loan 749 Principal 3! 0.01
ICICH bank Term loan 7.49 iPrincipat 8 (.00
1CICT bank Term loan 7.76 {Principal 3% 0.01
ICIC] bank ‘Term loan 7.56 1Principal 10 0.00
57 Type of Borrower Amount of loan or Percentage to the
advance in the nature of]  total Loans and
foan outstanding Advances in the
nature of loans
Promoters - ' -
Directors - -
Key managerial persennel - :
Related partics (without specifying any terms or period of repayment) - -
Related parties {(Repayable on Demand) 2,891.38 99.78
58  Name of intermidiary: Sterling and Wilson International FZE
Name of Ultimate beneficiary: Sterling and Wilson Middle Fast Biectromechanical LLC
Date of Transfer of funds Amount
12-April-2021 8.99
i8-May-202] 2741
25-August-2021 50.11
27-September-202 1 187.17
29-September-202 1 326,86
i 112-October-2021 0.97
" [22-December-2021 10.58
12-January-2022 42.55
1§-February-2022 4.14
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62

Comparison of returns submitted to bank vis-a-vis books of accounts

The Company has obtained borrowings from banks on the basis of security of Current Assels and the quarterly retums of drawing power filed by the
Conpany with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

The Company had entered into the development, supply, civil works, service and operation and maintenance agreements (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
EPC contracts’), for developing, constructing and commissioning of solar plants for seven Projects in two states namely Telangana and Madhya Pradesh
which were under dispute with the Developers (seven Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Companies owned by Sky Power Group.) Out of the seven projects,
pursuant to negotiations/discussion, disputes for four projects have heen resolved and seitled. As on the balance sheet date the value of trade receivables,
unbilied receivables and advance related to the balanee three projects aggregates Rs. 94.04 crores (previous year Rs 105.20 crores).

The Company’s subsidiary, Sterling and Wilson International ¥ZE which had supplied imported materials for these projects had filed case before Hon'bie
Figh Court of Pelhi in December 2018 for two out of three projects, restraining Skypower Group to alienate, transfer and/or sell the said assels, pending
commencement of arbitration proceedings with the Seat of Arbitration in Singapore, The Delhi High Court has, vide its order dated June 22, 2020 interalia
direeted each respondents of Skypower Group Companies/SPVs in the Delhi High Cowst proceedings to, within 4 (four) weeks from the date of Dethi High
Court Order, furaish bank goarantee equivalent to 50% of the total amounts sought to be secured by Company’s Subsidiary with the Registrar Generat of

the High Court. The Developers sought various extensions for furnishing the bank guarantees, the last extension being seught on 22 May 2021 for a peried

" of 12 weeks which was granted by the High Court.

In case of the remaining one project the dispute is between the Developers and Madhya Pradesh Power Management Company Limited (MPPMCL). The
subject matter of dispute is the validity of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) which was entered into between the Developer and MPPMCL and which
MPPMCL had terminated citing delay in commisioning of project, The High Court has twice given verdict in favour of the Developer, however MPPMCL
has preferred an appeal against the High Court decision and the matter has already been heard at Supreme Cowrt & verdeit is awaited. Subsequent to
Supreme Court decision, the Company expects selilement/recovery of its dues.

Based on above case status and discussions with the Developers, their legal Counge! and the favorable orders passed by various Courts in similar cases, the
Management believes that no adjusiments/impairments are required to be made in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company towards the
total ontstanding receivables.

OTHER MATTERS

The Company (Sterling and Wilson Private Limited) has decided to harmonize, closely monitor and supervise jts business operations in the Middie East. In
this regard the Company has transferred its Mechanical, Electrical & Plumbing {(MEP) business from its wholly owned subsidiary Sterling and Wilson
International FZE (SW FZE) (o another wholly owned subsidiary Sterling and Wilson Middle East Electromechanical LLC {§W ME). Both the subsidiaries
entered into a business transfer agreement dated February 28, 2022 for the transfer of the Mechanical, Electrical & Plumbing (MEP} business.

The terms of the arrangement are as follows:

4 Basis the above-mentioned effect date, the MEDP business of SW FZE shall stand vested with SW ME.

All the assets {including but not limited to fixed assets, inventories, receivables), tiabilities including sharehotder loans standing in the books of account
SW FZE (rerating to the MEY business} and carry forward losses as at the appointed date, will stand transferred to SW ME. The assets or Habilities not

The entities agree that all MEP business activities beyond March 1, 2022, will enly be carried out by SW ME.

TRANSFER PRICING

The Company's intemational transactions with related parties are al anm's Iength as per the independent accountants report for the year ended 31 March
2021, Management helieves that the Company's international transactions with related partics post 31 March 2021 continue 1o be at arm's length and that
the transfer pricing legisistion will not have any impact on these standalone fnancial stalements, particularly on amount of tax expense and (hat of
provision for taxation,
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63 Rectassification made during the year with respect to previous year

Nature of reclassification Amount reclassffied Reason for reclassification

{Rs. in Cr)

To related parties

Unbilled revenue recalssified from Other financial asset (Note no. 17 33.07(Reclassified for belter presentation 1o bring it in

to Other current asset Note no. 18) confirmity with correct year classificaition

To parties other than related parties

Unbilled revenue recalssified from Other financial asset (Note no. 17 817.85|Reclassified for beffer presentation to bring it in

confirmity with corfect year classificaition

to Other current asset note no. 18)

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classificd to conform 1o requirements of the amended Schedule HI to the Companies Act, 2013 effective
64 st Aprif 2021,




